# MUNICIPAL BUILDING, MOBILE, ALABAMA, MARCH 12, 2024

The Council of the City of Mobile, Alabama, met in the City Council's Conference Room on the ninth floor of the Mobile Government Plaza on Tuesday, March 12, 2024, at 9:00 a m

Councilmembers:

Present: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Absent: Small

The meeting was called to order. The Council reviewed and discussed the agenda for their meeting to be held today at 10:30 a.m.

Approved:	
	COUNCIL VICE-PRESIDENT
	CITY CLERK

# MUNICIPAL BUILDING, MOBILE, ALABAMA, MARCH 12, 2024

The City Council of the City of Mobile, Alabama, met in the Auditorium of the Government Plaza on Tuesday, March 12, 2024, at 10:30 a.m., for the regular meeting.

The meeting was called to order by the City Clerk, Lisa C. Lambert.

Councilmember Cory Penn, District 1, offered the invocation.

The Presiding Officer led the Pledge of Allegiance.

### Present on Roll Call:

Chairman:

Vice-Chairman: Gregory

Councilmembers: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves and Woods

Absent: Small

# STATEMENT OF RULES BY PRESIDING OFFICER

The Presiding Officer provided an overview of the City Council's Rules of Procedure.

# **APPROVAL OF MINUTES**

The minutes of the meeting of March 5, 2024, were approved as submitted.

# COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR

James Barber, Chief of Staff, stated that there were no comments from the Mayor's office.

Shadrach Collins, Superintendent of Recreation, presented the following employee of the month:

Carliss Morris employee #19105 – Public Works (Parks & Recreation) for March 2024

# **ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA**

Councilmember Reynolds moved to adopt the agenda, which move was seconded by Councilmember Penn and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the motion to adopt the agenda adopted.

# **APPEALS**

Request of O'Daly's Irish Pub for a waiver of the Nosie Ordinance at 564 Dauphin Street on March 16, 2024, from 5:00 p.m. – 12:00 a.m. (District 2).

Councilmember Carroll moved to grant the waiver, which move was seconded by Councilmember Reynolds and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the waiver granted.

Request of O'Daly's Irish Pub for a waiver of the Noise Ordinance at 564 Dauphin Street on March 17, 2024, from 4:00 p.m. – 10:00 p.m. (District 2).

Councilmember Carroll moved to grant the waiver, which move was seconded by Councilmember Reynolds and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the waiver granted.

Request of Cumulus Media for a waiver of the Noise Ordinance at 1711 Hillcrest Road on March 23, 2024, from 10:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. (District 6).

Councilmember Carroll moved to grant the waiver, which move was seconded by Councilmember Reynolds and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the waiver granted.

Request of Patsy Alexander for a waiver of the Noise Ordinance at 1711 Hillcrest Road on April 13, 2024, from 8:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. (District 6).

Councilmember Carroll moved to grant the waiver, which move was seconded by Councilmember Reynolds and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the waiver granted.

# **PUBLIC HEARINGS**

# <u>PUBLIC HEARING TO DECLARE THE STRUCTURE AT 2813 BERKLEY AVENUE A</u> PUBLIC NUISANCE AND ORDER IT DEMOLISHED (DISTRICT 1).

The Presiding Officer announced that today was the day for the public hearing to declare the structure at 2813 Berkley Avenue a public nuisance and order it demolished and asked if there was anyone present to speak for or against this matter.

No one appeared.

The Presiding Officer declared the hearing concluded and that the necessary resolution authorizing the proper action would be introduced later in the meeting.

# <u>PUBLIC HEARING TO DECLARE THE STRUCTURE AT 1328 ADAMS STREET A</u> PUBLIC NUISANCE AND ORDER IT DEMOLISHED (DISTRICT 2).

The Presiding Officer announced that today was the day for the public hearing to declare the structure at 1328 Adams Street a public nuisance and order it demolished and asked if there was anyone present to speak for or against this matter.

No one appeared.

The Presiding Officer declared the hearing concluded and that the necessary resolution authorizing the proper action would be introduced later in the meeting.

# PRESENTATIONS OF PETITIONS AND OTHER COMMUNICATIONS TO THE COUNCIL

# **NON-AGENDA ITEMS:**

Patricia Law, 2990 Graham Road N., Commented about the guidelines for organizations receiving permits to participate in the parades due to the Comic Cowboys illustration of the killing of Jawan Dallas.

Diamond Slay, 619 Belsaw Avenue, Commented about the Comic Cowboys signage used during the parade.

Tabitha Humphrey, 516 Montgomery Street, Spoke about the Comic Cowboys signs used during the parade and the injustices being done to black men in the community.

Reverend Tonny Algood, 214-A De Sales Avenue, Offered comments about the racist signs displayed by the Comic Cowboys.

# ORDINANCES HELD OVER

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 25, GARBAGE, TRASH AND LITTER OF THE MOBILE CITY CODE. The following ordinance which was introduced and read at the regular meeting of August 22, 2023, and held over until the regular meetings of August 29, 2023, October 3, 2023, October 24, 2023, November 14, 2023, January 9, 2024, February 6, 2024, and March 12, 2024, was called up by the Presiding Officer.

ORDINANCE: 25-039-2023

Sponsored by: Mayor Stimpson

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:

<u>ARTICLE ONE: Amendment and Restatement of Chapter 25 GARBAGE, TRASH, AND LITTER</u>

Chapter 25, Garbage, Trash and Litter of the Mobile City Code, 1991, is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:

# **CHAPTER 25 GARBAGE, TRASH, AND LITTER**

### **ARTICLE 1. GARBAGE AND TRASH**

### Sec. 25-1 – Applicability and Rule of Construction

- (a) Except where otherwise provided, the provisions of this article apply throughout the City limits.
- (b) If any portion of this article is held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, then such judgment shall in no way affect or impair the validity of the remaining portions of this article.

### Sec. 25-2 - Definitions

As used in this article, the following terms are defined as follows:

- (1) Apartment is a suite of rooms which composes a residence in a multi-dwelling unit, which the occupant(s) rents.
- (2) *Balloon* is a flexible nonporous bag made from materials such as rubber, latex, polychloroprene, or nylon fabric that can be inflated or filled with fluid, such as helium, hydrogen, nitrous oxide, oxygen, air, or water and then sealed at the neck, usually used as a toy or decoration.
- (3) Bulk container is any dumpster, roll-off container, or stationary storage facility placed for the temporary containerization of solid waste at a place of business, multi-dwelling unit complex, industrial or construction site, and is tightly covered or constructed to eliminate wind-driven debris and unsightly litter on or about the premises.
- (4) Business means a sole proprietorship, partnership, joint venture, corporation, or other business entity, either for-profit or not-for-profit, including retail establishments where goods or services are sold, professional corporations and other entities where legal, medical, dental, engineering, architectural, or other professional services are delivered, and private clubs.
- (5) *Condominium* is a suite of rooms which compose a residence in a multi-dwelling unit, which the occupant(s) owns or rents from the owner.
- (6) Downtown Business District means the area bounded by the Mobile River on the east, Canal Street on the south, Broad Street on the west, and Beauregard Street on the north.
- (7) Enforcement Officer means a City of Mobile employee designated by the Mayor as the person to exercise the authority, enforce the provisions and perform the duties delegated by this Chapter in accord with the prescribed procedures of this jurisdiction.
- (8) Cigarette litter receptacle is a container for the disposal of litter from smoking including cigarettes, cigars and their butts.
- (9) City means the City of Mobile, in the County of Mobile, d in the State of Alabama.
- (10) City limits are the corporate boundaries of the City.
- (11) Commercial premises is any lot or any building, or part thereof, used in connection with or for the conduct of any business, trade, occupation, or any profession for which a license is required by the City, and includes all unimproved real property not zoned for single-family residential use.

- (12) Commercial waste means refuse from commercial premises including garbage, trash, kitchen waste, restaurant waste, food containers, paper, floor litter, sidewalk sweepings, leaves, grass, weeds, hedge trimmings, and small tree trimmings not exceeding five feet in length and four inches in diameter, and includes waste generated from a business operating on residential premises and waste generated from multi dwelling units.
- (13) Corrective notice is a written notice or warning issued by an enforcement officer to inform the recipient of a violation of this article and specifying a period of time in which to correct the violation. A corrective notice does not impose a fine.
- (14) Construction Debris means rubbish resulting from construction, demolition, or alteration of any building or structure, including scrap, lumber, plaster, roofing, concrete, brick and sanding dust, mortar and glass, resulting from the construction, repair, remodeling, removal, or demolition of any structure.
- (15) Domestic waste Any waste capable of entering into or passing through a plumbing system. Such waste includes but is not limited to human excrement, bath water, kitchen and bathroom waste and waste from septic tanks, sumps, outhouses, or any other waste collection point. The term "domestic waste" does not include waste from any commercial or industrial process that is authorized by Mobile Area Water and Sewer System to be discharged into a sewage collection system.
- (16) Food service facility Any establishment, retail food store, public or private school, correctional facility, hospital, food processing or preparing establishment, or other establishment where food is prepared for sale or offered for sale, including any establishment that slaughters, fabricates, bones, or processes animals, poultry, or fish whether or not required by law to be licensed or permitted by an agency of the state.
- (17) *Garbage* means putrescible material and other daily non-putrescible disposable items when part of household garbage.
- (18) Garbage cart is a 64- or 96-gallon container provided by the City for use with its automated garbage collection system.
- (19) *Grease hauler* Any person who removes fat, oil, or grease waste of any form from a premises by means of transporting the waste over a public road. This includes waste from grease traps, grease interceptors, grease collection bins, or any other fats, oils, or grease collection point.
- (20) Hazardous materials/waste means a substance in quantity and form which may pose an unreasonable risk to human health and safety or to the environment, including private property. Additionally, the definition of Hazardous waste includes any material regulated under Resource Conservation and Recovery Act Subtitle C (42 U.S.C. §§ 6921 6939g) including waste generated in the course of operating a business at a residence. Hazardous Materials includes pesticides, herbicides, fertilizer, antifreeze, batteries, acids, cleaners, paint, medications, fluorescent light bulbs, railroad ties, and petroleum products.
- (21) *Household* means a single-family residence, an individual mobile home, and/or a multi-family residence.
- (22) Household garbage means putrescible solid waste as well as ordinary waste generated by a household. t. This term does not include sewage, bodily waste, or ashes. Applies to areas zoned as single-family, duplex, tri-plex, or quad-plex. This term does not include Multi-dwelling unit waste and waste generated in the course of operating a business at a residence.
- (23) Household trash means non-putrescible solid waste consisting of yard clippings, leaves, wood, tree limbs and trunks, bedding, appliances, furniture, paper and cardboard, plastics, wood, wrappings, cans, and similar materials, but not ashes. This term does not include Multi-dwelling unit waste and waste generated in the course of operating a business at a residence.

- (24) *Junk* refers to any vehicle parts, rubber tires, appliances, dilapidated furniture, machinery, equipment, building material, or other items which are either in a wholly or partially rusted, wrecked, junked, dismantled or inoperative condition. This term includes a vehicle with one or more of the following characteristics: it is non-operating, abandoned, wrecked, or partially dismantled; or it has flat tires, or a missing engine, door(s), hood, windows, or other missing body parts.
- (25) *Knowingly* means a person is aware of taking the action, behavior, or conduct which amounts to committing a violation. It is not a requirement that the person has knowledge that the behavior is an offense.
- (26) *Litter* means any garbage, refuse, or noncontainerized man-made solid waste, such as paper, plastic, diapers, cigarette butts, bottles, cans, glass, crockery, scrap metal, construction materials, rubbish, disposable packages, or containers.
- (27) Litter receptacle is a container constructed and placed for use as a depository for litter.
- (28) *Manufactured home* means a building, transportable in one (1) or more sections, which is built on a permanent chassis and designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities. The term also includes park trailers, travel trailers and similar transportable structures placed on a site and intended to be improved property.
- (29) Manufactured home park means a manufactured home park or subdivision for which the facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are affixed are constructed by the owner of the park of subdivision before placement of a manufactured home on an individual lot. The facilities servicing the lot include, at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pad(s).
- (30) *Multi-dwelling unit* is a building in which five or more multiple separate housing units for residential occupants are contained in one building or several buildings within one complex and under the same ownership or with multiple owners. Condominiums or apartments may compose the buildings in a multi-dwelling unit.
- (31) *Multi-family residence* means two, three, or four family separate residential units in a single residential structure, such as a duplex, triplex, or fourplex.
- (32) Municipal offense ticket (MOT) is a citation specifying a violation of a City ordinance issued by an enforcement officer of the City and directs the violator either to pay a fine and court costs or to appear in municipal court to answer the charge(s).
- (33) *Occupant* is any owner, tenant, or person residing in possession or in charge of any house, building, store, shop, lot, or premises.
- (34) Owner is any person, agent, firm, corporation or other entity having legal title to real property, including any mortgagee bank, company, institution, individual, or other entity of record which has foreclosed on the property, or the estate of a deceased owner or the last recorded owner in the property tax records of the county revenue commissioner.
- (35) *Person* means an individual, partnership, association, syndicate, company, firm, trust, corporation, government, corporation, department, bureau, agency, business, or any entity recognized by law, and any agents of those entities.
- (36) *Places of assembly* are buildings, structures, or portions of a building or structure used for the gathering of persons for purposes such as civic, social, or religious functions, recreation, food or drink consumption, or for awaiting transportation.
- (37) Premises means any building or real property.

- (38) Private property is property owned by any person as defined herein.
- (39) *Public nuisance* includes any growth of weeds, scrub (wild) bushes, and grass exceeding community standards, normally ten inches in height, and/or nonorganic debris that presents a fire hazard, a health hazard, a flooding hazard, a safety hazard, or otherwise endangers human health and safety or the environment.
- (40) *Putrescible* means an item that will rot or decay, such as food waste, and therefore is likely to attract vermin and other vectors.
- (41) Qualified Business Enterprise is a restaurant, bar, or other substantially similar establishment approved by the Public Services Department operating within the defined Downtown Business District.
- (42) *Refuse* is a term applied generally to trash, garbage, debris, litter, and any discarded materials.
- (43) Residential premises are premises used as single- or multi-family dwellings, townhouses, apartments, and condominiums, both privately and publicly owned.
- (44) Septage hauler Any person who removes domestic waste from a premises and transports the waste over a public road.
- (45) Single-family residence is a one-family dwelling; a residential structure, which does not share any common walls with another residence; the dwelling may be owner-occupied or tenant-occupied.
- (46) *Sky lantern* is a device that requires a flame which produces heated air trapped in a balloon-type covering allowing the device to float in the air. Sky lanterns shall not include hot-air balloons used for transporting persons.
- (47) *Trash* is non-putrescible solid waste consisting of yard clippings, leaves, wood, tree limbs and trunks, bedding, appliances, paper and cardboard, plastics, wood, wrappings, cans, and similar materials.
- (48) *UNTCC* is a uniform non-traffic citation and complaint as set out in Rule 20 of the Alabama Rules of Judicial Administration. When issued electronically, it is known as an eUNTCC.
- (49) *UTCC* is a uniform traffic citation and complaint as set out in Rule 20 of the Alabama Rules of Judicial Administration.
- 50) Vehicle is any device capable of moving and transporting persons or property upon a public highway, street, or waterway. This shall include any watercraft, boat, ship, vessel, barge, or other floating craft. For the purposes of this ordinance, Vehicle does not include devices moved by human power and those vehicles used exclusively for agricultural purposes, not licensed pursuant to state law, and that are not operated on any public highway for purposes other than crossing such public highways or along such highways between two tracts of the owner's land.

# Sec. 25-3 - Department of Public Services, Sanitation Division

- (a) The Department of Sanitation shall from time to time implement rules and guidelines consistent with the provisions of Chapter 25 in order to implement and effectuate the application of said provisions.
- (b) The pickup schedule for household garbage and household trash will be fixed under guidelines and procedures implemented by the Department of Sanitation.

# Sec. 25-4 - General Requirements

It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally damage, remove, handle or to otherwise disturb the garbage containers or the contents thereof which have been placed on city right of way for servicing by the garbage collectors; provided, that this section does not apply to the owner, occupant, lessee, or tenant of the residence or dwelling so placing the container and contents.

# Sec. 25-5 – Household garbage.

- (a) *Frequency*. Pickup of household garbage is once per week based on the household address. Frequency may be governed by to guidelines implemented by the Department of Sanitation and is subject to change. Holiday schedules may vary.
- (b) Garbage cart issuance. The City of Mobile will assign an initial 96-gallon or 64-gallon garbage cart to newly constructed residential units. All existing households eligible for collection are required to have a City assigned garbage cart. An additional or replacement garbage cart may be assigned to the address by the City for a fee (for a total limit of 2 per household). Title of the garbage cart shall at all times remain with the City. Payment options can be found by checking the City of Mobile website at <a href="https://www.CityofMobile.org">www.CityofMobile.org</a> or by calling Mobile 311 at 251-208-5311.
- (c) Garbage carts.
- (1) All household garbage shall be contained inside plastic bags and placed inside of a city-issued garbage cart. All garbage carts shall be closed to prevent animals from scattering the garbage. Garbage carts overloaded so that lids will not close will not be picked up.
- (2) Garbage carts should be placed with the handle facing away from the street to ensure the cart is aligned with the garbage truck loading mechanism.
- (3) No intentional marking, drawing, or writing with paint, ink, or another substance on, or the intentional etching into the garbage cart is allowed.
- (4) Maintenance. Garbage carts that have deteriorated to the extent of having jagged or sharp edges capable of causing injury to the garbage collectors or others whose duty it is to handle these containers, will not be collected. Deteriorated carts must be replaced at the cost of household. Garbage carts shall be kept cleaned, maintained, sanitized, and free of any other forms of deterioration inside and outside.
- (5) Removal of garbage cart from the assigned address shall be prohibited.
- (6) Failure to comply with any provision of 25-5(c) shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof.
- (d) *Quantity*. Each household shall be limited up to two (2) city issued garbage carts. Unauthorized garbage carts will not be picked up.
- (e) Location. All containers shall be placed curbside and not placed in the street. Carts placed in medians or on vacant lots will not be collected. Garbage carts not serviced on the scheduled route due to placement or obstruction (i.e., blocked by vehicles, etc.) will not receive additional/return service.
- (f) *Time*. Household garbage containers shall be placed by the curb by 6:00 a.m. on the regular collection day, and empty containers should be returned to the household as soon as possible, but not later than 11:59 p.m. on collection day. If a resident does not know the collection day for their area, they may request this information by contacting Mobile 311 at 251-208-5311 or check the City of Mobile website at <a href="https://www.cityofmobile.org">www.cityofmobile.org</a>. It shall be a violation of this Chapter punishable under Article Three hereof.to allow a container to remain by the curb beyond the time stated above.

(g) Hazardous materials/waste and Household Trash. It shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof.to place these materials, as defined in 25-2, in garbage carts even if they are in a plastic bag.

#### Sec. 25-6 - Household trash.

- (a) *Frequency.* Pick-up is every other week, subject to change pursuant to guideline implemented by the Department of Sanitation. Holiday schedules may vary.
- (b) Quantity.
- (1) Maximum quantity for no additional charge is limited to approximately two (2) cubic yards (3 feet by 3 feet by 6 feet) or the equivalent of fifteen (15) bags of leaves, per household, every other week. (There is no charge for this amount.)
- (2) Amounts exceeding the maximum collection limit will be considered an oversized load. The household will have the choice of taking it to an approved landfill or contacting the city to collect it for a fee. Trash piles that are requested for oversized loads will be evaluated by a Sanitation department official who will determine the collection fee based on the size of the pile. The Department of Sanitation may elect to collect the fee before removing the trash. Information and payment options can be found by checking the City of Mobile website at <a href="https://www.CityofMobile.org">www.CityofMobile.org</a> or by calling Mobile 311 at 251-208-5311.
- (3) Where household trash exceeds the maximum allowed, that trash will not be collected, and a corrective notice will be given explaining the violation.
- (c) *Time*. Household trash may not be placed for collection prior to forty-eight (48) hours before the designated pickup day.
- (d) Location. Household trash shall be placed on the property where it originated as close to the street as possible without posing an obstruction to pedestrians or other risk to health and human safety. Trash piles that are not serviced on the scheduled route due to placement or obstruction (i.e., blocked by vehicles, etc.) will not receive additional/return service and it will be the responsibility of the property owner to remove. It shall be a violation of this Article to place household trash in any of the following locations or ways:
- (1) On medians, on vacant or abandoned residential or commercial property.
- (2) Obstructing sidewalks.
- (3) Obstructing gutters, ditches, or any portions of the city's drain system.
- (4) Obstructing the street, creating a traffic hazard.
- (5) In a location that could cause a fire hazard, with trash not eligible for city pickup.
- (6) Around fire hydrants, signposts, guy wires, power poles, over water meters, over masonry work, against fences, or at the base of trees located within the City of Mobile rights-of-way.
- (7) Under low hanging power lines, TV cables or low tree limbs.
- (e) Leaves, straw, and grass clippings may be placed by the curb for pickup at the scheduled time if bagged or boxed and limited to the quantities defined above.
- (f) The following materials are not collectible as part of household trash, and it shall be a violation of this Article to place these materials on the curb:
- (1) Limbs greater than twelve (12) inches in diameter;
- (2) Limbs greater than six (6) feet in length;

- (3) Construction debris (including home improvement projects);
- (4) Debris from a lot clearing project;
- (5) Materials from commercial projects;
- (6) Materials from evictions; or
- (7) Any materials accumulated from commercial businesses.
- (g) Failure to comply with any requirement of this Section 25-6 shall be a violation.

# Sec. 25-7 - Hazardous materials/waste.

(a) It shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof.to place or include Hazardous materials/waste with household trash or household garbage. Said matter must be disposed of by the household at a facility legally permitted for the disposal of these items. b) Broken glass, sharp metal objects, or hypodermic needles and other household medical waste must be disposed of in puncture-proof sealed containers or biohazard waste bags.

### Sec. 25-8 - Downtown Business District

- (a) Except as provided below, the City of Mobile does not provide trash or garbage services to businesses or commercial enterprises.
- (b). Commercial waste will be collected once each day from all qualified business enterprises located within the Downtown Business District.
- (c) Garbage Carts.
- (1) Issuance. Garbage carts must be obtained from City for a fee. Title of the garbage cart shall at all times remain with the City. The City will only service City garbage carts. Payment options can be found by checking the City of Mobile website at <a href="https://www.CityofMobile.org">www.CityofMobile.org</a> or by calling Mobile 311 at 251-208-5311.
- (2) Maintenance. Garbage carts that have deteriorated to the extent of having jagged or sharp edges capable of causing injury to the garbage collectors or others whose duty it is to handle these containers, will not be collected. Deteriorated carts will be replaced by the City, for a fee paid by the business owner. Garbage carts shall be kept cleaned, maintained, sanitized, and free of any other forms of deterioration inside and outside.
- (3) No intentional marking, drawing, or writing with paint, ink, or another substance on, or the intentional etching into the garbage cart is allowed.
- (4) It shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof.to intentionally damage or remove a garbage cart from the assigned address.
- (d) Quantity. All garbage consisting of kitchen waste, restaurant waste, food refuse or other matter offensive in sight or smell shall be bagged and placed in ninety-six (96) gallon garbage carts. The combined weight of garbage and cart shall not exceed one hundred (100) pounds each; garbage carts weighing in excess of one hundred (100) pounds will not be picked up.
- (e) Location. Containers of commercial waste may be placed for collection on or near the curb line of the originating place of business, including streets at the front or rear, or the alley of that business's property, providing the alley is accessible to the collectors' trucks at the time of collection of garbage. Placement areas shall be kept cleaned, maintained, and sanitized.

- (f) *Time*. Garbage Carts in the Business District shall not be placed on the sidewalk or curb for collection between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. After the garbage has been collected, the owners of the containers shall remove them from the streets of the City not later than two hours after the garbage has been collected. Waste containers may be placed in alleys at any time.
- (g) Failure to comply with any provision of 25-8 shall be a violation of this section. punishable under Article Three hereof.

# Sec. 25-9 - Commercial, Outside of Downtown Business District

- (a) The provisions of this section shall apply to all Commercial Enterprises, Multi-dwelling units, manufactured home parks, and places of assembly that are located within the City limits and are outside of the Downtown Business District.
- (b) Commercial pickup outside the business district will be arranged by the owner or occupant of the commercial enterprise.
- (c) Commercial premises shall install dumpsters, bulk containers, or other containers to be emptied on a timely basis at the owner or occupant's expense.
- (d) All dumpsters shall be affixed with an identification decal, which is legible and waterproof, that includes the following information:
- (1) The name of the entity or business using the dumpster;
- (2) If the business is also the owner of the property, the name, address, and telephone number of the person who is authorized to accept legal service for the owner; and
- (3) If the business is a tenant on the property, the name address and telephone number of the person who is authorized to accept legal service for the tenant.
- (e) In the event that an owner or occupant of commercial premises elects to enclose a dumpster or secure the dumpster with an automatic lock release in accordance with subsection (e) or is required to do so as provided in subsection (e), then said owner or operator must ensure the conditions noted below are met. Dumpster enclosures are not optional for an owner or occupant that has committed a second violation of Sec. 25-10 of this ordinance, in which case the City requires the owner or occupant to enclose the dumpster and secure it by installing an automatic lock.
- (1) Dumpster enclosures must meet the following criteria:
- (a) Constructed of wood or brick and at least the height of the dumpster, which is being enclosed, but not to exceed eight (8) feet in height.
- (b) The dumpster enclosure may be equipped with a door or gate constructed of wood or other opaque material that opens outward and which remains closed unless the dumpster is being filled or emptied.
- (c) The dumpster enclosure must be of sufficient size to allow for placement and removal of the dumpster without causing damage to the enclosure.
- (d) The dumpster enclosure must be kept in good repair and condition.
- (e) Failure to comply with any provision above shall be a violation of this Article. Any owner or occupant of commercial premises that has a dumpster located thereon who pleads guilty to a violation of this section, or is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be guilty of violating this section, may, on a first offense, be allowed the option to either pay the applicable fine and costs, or alternatively, to enclose the dumpster or secure the dumpster with an automatic lock release in accordance with the requirements of this

section within the sixty-day period following the guilty plea or adjudication. Upon a second violation of this section, the occupant shall be required to enclose the dumpster or secure the dumpster with an automatic lock release in accordance with the requirements of this section in addition to all other fines, penalties, and costs that may be imposed. For purposes of this section, failure by the defendant to either pay a fine or appear in court as required by a properly served charging document shall be considered the same as pleading guilty to violating this section.

- (1) To be deemed secured under this section, the dumpster must have a functioning automatic lock release, sometimes called a gravity lock release or similar product, that will cause the lid of the dumpster to be securely closed and sealed whenever the dumpster is not being filled or emptied.
- (f) Failure to comply with any requirement of this Section 25-9 shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof.

### Sec. 25-10 - Commercial Waste/Collection

- (a) It shall be the duty of each owner, occupant, tenant, or lessee of any commercial premises, multi-dwelling unit premises, manufactured home park, or places of assembly to keep the premises clear and free of litter, trash, junk, and high grass and weeds as defined under "public nuisance" in Section 25-2-34. These areas include grounds, parking lots, roads, driveways, rights-of-way, loading and unloading areas, storm drains, vacant lots, and unimproved real property. See Sec. 52-56 for the circumstances in which the City may declare a nuisance.
- (b) All persons performing construction and demolition work, and owners or occupants of commercial premises shall provide on-site receptacles for loose debris paper, building material waste, scrap building materials, and other litter products to prevent the scattering of such materials by wind or rain.
- (c) No owner or occupant of commercial premises who is not a licensed junk dealer may grant permission to any person to dispose of litter, garbage, trash, or junk on the premises.
- (d) All owners or occupants of commercial premises shall store their trash, garbage, or litter in appropriate containers; maintain their premises as clean, neat, and sanitary; and shall prevent litter from blowing or washing onto adjacent property thoroughfares or into storm drains or waterways. Spillage and overflow around containers shall be cleaned up as it occurs.
- (e) Where commercial enterprises share parking lots, the occupant and/or owner must decide who will be responsible for the container. That enterprise must put their name and contact information on the container and take ownership over its maintenance.
- (f) Containers required by this section shall be of sufficient size and material to hold the litter and other waste from visitors to the commercial enterprise.
- (g) The occupant and/or owner of each commercial enterprise is responsible for emptying and otherwise maintaining the containers to limit litter, waste, or debris in the area.
- (h) Any owner or occupant of commercial premises that has a trash or litter located within the parking lots, who pleads guilty to a violation of this section, or is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be guilty of violating this section, may, on a first offense, be allowed the option to either pay the applicable fine and costs, or alternatively, provide appropriate containers, labeled with the responsible party's (Dumpster info 25-11-d) distributed evenly throughout the parking lot at a rate of one container every 12 parking places or at a maximum of a 60-foot spacing between each container for all on-site. Upon a second violation of this section, the owner or occupant if found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be guilty shall pay the applicable fine, court costs and provide one garbage can for every 12 parking spaces as required by this section. For purposes of this section, failure by the defendant to either pay a fine or appear in court as required by a properly

served charging document shall be considered the same as pleading guilty to violating this section.

(i) Failure to comply with any requirement of this Section 25-10 shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof.

# Sec. 25-11 – Vehicles hauling garbage, trash, and refuse.

- (a) Each truck or other vehicle used in the business of collecting and hauling trash, garbage and refuse for hire shall be designed so that the cargo does not escape the vehicle. Any said vehicle shall have the following characteristics:
- (1) The vehicle shall have solid sides, a tailgate, a cover, and be watertight;
- (2) The sides and tailgate should be at least four (4) feet in height.
- (3) The top should be solid or rigged with a tarpaulin that can be spread tightly over the top of such truck to cover the entire opening and extend 12" down the sides. The solid top or tarpaulin shall be used at any time the vehicle is moving, except in those instances where the vehicle is collecting waste and moving fewer than one hundred (100) yards at an average speed less than 15 mph.
- (4) Tanks, containers and other receptacles should be watertight and operators should use covers or lids in such a manner as to prevent the dropping, escaping, or spilling of any waste upon the road, street, alley, or any public or private property.
- (b) If trash, garbage or refuse leaves a vehicle, the operator shall collect it at that time.
- (c) Each truck or other vehicle used in the business of collecting and hauling of trash, garbage and refuse for hire shall have the cubic yardage of the body of the truck or vehicle painted in five-inch letters on the left side of the body near the cab. Each truck or vehicle shall have signs painted on both doors of the truck or vehicle indicating the correct name of the hauler and their telephone number.
- (d) No such truck shall be used in the business of collecting and hauling trash, garbage and refuse unless there has been a City license procured by the operator thereof, and no license shall be issued by the city revenue officer for any such truck until such truck has been examined by the city police department and approved as complying with the provisions of this section. The license number for any such truck shall be prominently displayed and affixed outside of such truck to the left front door of the cab. Every such license shall be subject to revocation for a violation of any of the provisions of this chapter or any other ordinance of the city pursuant to the provisions for revocation of city licenses set forth in the license code of the city.
- (e) No truck or other vehicle used in the business of collecting and hauling trash, garbage and refuse for hire shall operate or carry on its work between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. of each day in the area bounded on the west by Broad Street, on the east by Mobile River, on the north by State Street and on the south by Monroe Street; provided, that where such trucks or other vehicles do not pick up garbage or trash on or along the streets of the city, but pick up trash and garbage only in private alleys off the streets, they may operate on the streets of the city at all hours of the day and night but shall comply in such operations with all other provisions of this section.
- (f) Failure to comply with any provision of this section shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof.
- (g) The provision of Sections 25-11 shall not apply to a responsible government agency which deposits sand or other substance to increase traction, or water or other substance to clean or maintain a street or roadway.

### **ARTICLE II. LITTER 1**

# Sec. 25-20 - Cleaning litter, trash, or junk from private property.

- (a) The owner of any vacant or unoccupied private property shall at all times keep it clear of litter, garbage, junk, or trash. The owner must also properly dispose of litter, garbage, junk, or trash located on that property. It shall not be a defense that the litter was placed or caused by a third party.(b) Licensed junk dealers or commercial premises used for the repair, rebuilding, reconditioning, or salvaging of goods whose work area is screened from public view by a fence, hedge, wall or similar device of sufficient height to provide a visual buffer, and who complies with the city's junk and zoning ordinances shall not be subject to the provisions of this section.
- (b) The failure, neglect or refusal of any owner notified by an enforcement officer to properly dispose of litter, trash, garbage, or junk within ten (10) days after receipt of the notice shall constitute a violation of this article.

# Sec. 25-21 – Litter receptacles.

- (a) Except for premises within the business district, every owner or occupant of commercial premises shall, at their own expense, provide, place, and regularly maintain litter receptacles, including cigarette litter receptacles, at entrances, employee smoking areas and common pedestrian transition points. The number of litter receptacles shall be adequate to contain litter generated at these premises. In determining the adequate number of receptacles, it is suggested, but not mandatory except as required by subsection (c) below, that receptacles be distributed evenly throughout the parking lot at a rate of one container every 20 parking places for all on-site parking.
- (b) Litter receptacles on any premises shall meet the following minimum standards:
- (1) Constructed of such quality as to maintain the receptacle's original shape when kept in an outdoor location and reasonably resistant to rust and corrosion.
- (2) Constructed and designed or covered in such a manner as to prevent or preclude litter from escaping from the receptacle.
- (3) Serviced with such frequency as necessary to prevent spillage from overflow and to prevent offensive odor.
- (c) Any owner or occupant of commercial premises who pleads guilty or is found by a court to be guilty of violating this section, may, on a first offense, either pay the applicable fine and costs, or alternatively, provide one (1) receptacle for every twenty (20) parking places. for all on-site parking. Any owner or occupant who pleads guilty or is found by a court to be guilty of a second violation of this section, shall pay the applicable fine and court costs and shall thereafter provide one (1) litter receptacle for every twenty (20) parking spaces for all on-site parking. For purposes of this section, failure by the defendant to either pay a fine or appear in court as required by a properly served charging document shall be considered the same as pleading guilty.
- d) It shall be a violation of this article for any person to deposit any item except litter into a litter receptacle. It shall be a violation of this article to fail to comply with any provisions of this section.

# Sec. 25-22 - Littering from a vehicle.

(a) It shall be a violation of this article for any person in a vehicle to drop, deposit, discard or otherwise dispose of litter in or upon any public or private property within the city including but not restricted to, any street, median, right-of-way, sidewalk, park, vacant or occupied lot, body of water, except in litter receptacles or in an area designated by the state department of environmental management as a permitted disposal site.

- (b) The owner of the motor vehicle shall be responsible in the event that any person commits the preceding unlawful acts while in a motor vehicle, whether it is moving or at rest.
- (c) It shall be a violation of this article for any person, hauler, firm, or business falling within Section 25-11 to haul garbage, paper, trash, sand, gravel, wet cement, construction materials, other loose materials, or waste unless the truck or vehicle used is properly covered, secured or sealed to prevent any loss or spillage during hauling, or littering of streets or highways, or nuisances or hazard to the public health of the environment.
- (d) It shall be a violation of this article for any person, hauler, firm, or business in 25-22(c) to allow materials being hauled to spill, drop from, or escape the vehicle, without immediately recovering the lost or spilled materials.
- (e) Any person cleaning litter or junk from private property and operating a vehicle on a public right of way in the city limits from which any glass, nails or other sharp objects have fallen or escaped which could cause an obstruction or damage a vehicle or otherwise endanger travelers on such public property shall immediately cause the public property to be clear of such objects and shall pay any cost thereof. It shall be a violation of this Section to fail to comply with any provision herein.

# Sec. 25-23 - Sweeping litter into street.

(a) It shall be a violation of this article to blow, sweep, or push litter, junk, or trash, including yard clippings, leaves, grass, or cigarette butts, onto the city streets, alleys, stormwater structures, ditches, or waterways. All litter and trash shall be deposited into a garbage cart, garbage can, bag, or box, cigarette litter receptacle or litter receptacle and be tightly covered and secured to prevent scattering before pickup.

# Sec. 25-24 - Dumping of litter, trash, or junk.

- (a) It shall be a violation of this article for any person to discard or dump any litter, garbage, trash or junk on any private or public property unless disposed of in receptacles provided for public use that comply with the requirements of this article or in an area designated by the state department of environmental management as a permitted disposal site.
- (b) For the purposes of this section, items found in an accumulation of garbage, trash or other discarded material including, but not limited to, bank statements, utility bills, bank card bills, and other financial documents, clearly bearing the name of a person, shall constitute a rebuttable presumption that the person whose name appears thereon knowingly deposited the litter. Advertising, marketing and campaign materials and campaign literature shall not be sufficient to constitute a rebuttable presumption under this section. No prosecution for violation of this section based on evidence that creates a rebuttable presumption shall be brought against a person unless he or she has been given written notice by an enforcement officer that items found in an accumulation of garbage, trash or other discarded materials contain his or her name, and that under this section, there is a rebuttable presumption that he or she knowingly deposited the litter. The notice shall advise the person of the penalty for violating this section, and shall provide that, unless the person can present satisfactory information or evidence to rebut the presumption to the designee of the city within fifteen (15) days of the date of the notice, an action under this section may be filed against him or her in municipal court. If the person responds to the notice and presents information or evidence to the designee of the city, the designee shall review the information of evidence presented and make a determination as to whether or not an action should be brought against the person for violating this section. The designee shall provide written notice to the person of the determination, and if the intent is to proceed with an action under this section, the notice shall be sent before an MOT or UNTCC is issued.

# Sec. 25-25 – Removal of litter from litter receptacles.

- (a) The removal of litter from receptacles placed at public parks, beaches, fishing areas and other public recreation sites shall be the responsibility of those state and local agencies responsible for the maintenance of these sites.
- (b) The removal of litter from garbage cans, litter receptacles, or bulk containers placed on private property which are used by the public on commercial premises shall be the duty of the owner or occupant of those premises. It shall be a violation of this article for an owner or occupant to fail to regularly remove or provide for the regular removal of litter as required by this subsection.

# Sec. 25-26 – Yard, garage sale, or other unauthorized temporary signs.

- (a) It shall be a violation of this article to place any signs on trees or utility poles in the city rights-of-way without exception.
- (b) *Exception*. Notwithstanding the provision of 25-26(a), special event directional signs may be placed on public property in compliance with Chapter 54, Section 122-125.

# Sec. 25-27 - Balloon or Sky Lantern Release.

- (a) It shall be a violation of this Section for any person to intentionally release, organize the release of, or intentionally cause to be released one or more sky lanterns or balloons inflated with gas that is lighter than air which includes but is not limited to, helium, with the exception of:
- (1) Balloons released by a person or educational institution on behalf of a governmental agency or pursuant to a governmental contract for scientific or meteorological purposes.
- (2) Balloons released indoors.
- (3) Balloon tests performed.

### Article III - Enforcement

# Sec. 25-30 - Violations

- (a) The provisions of this Article III apply to provide enforcement procedures with regard to all violations of Chapter 25.
- (b) It is a violation to fail to comply with any provision of Chapter 25.
- (c) Violations of Chapter 25 may be enforced as applicable by one or more of the following actions: 1) Corrective Notice; 2) Municipal Offense Ticket (MOT); 3) Uniform Non-Traffic Citation and Complaint; and 4) Uniform Traffic Citation and Complaint.

#### Sec. 25-31 - Enforcement procedures.

- (a) A city police officer may choose to cite and release defendant for a violation of Chapter 25. The UNTCC shall serve as the charging instrument and shall be issued in accordance with Rule 20 of the Alabama Rules of Judicial Administration.
- (b) A city employee designated as an enforcement officer may issue a municipal offense ticket (MOT) for a violation of Chapter 25. The person charged with a violation must do the following within the time period specified on the MOT, or within twelve (12) hours before the court date shown on the MOT:
- (1) Appear in person before a magistrate, who will retain a copy of the ticket, sign the plea of guilty waiver of rights on the MOT, and pay the fine and applicable court costs; or
- (2) Sign the plea of guilty waiver of rights provision on the MOT and mail or hand deliver to the clerk of the municipal court the signed page and payment for the amount of the fine

and applicable court costs. Remittance by mail or hand delivery of the fine and costs constitutes a guilty plea and waiver of trial, even if the "plea of guilty waiver of rights" provision on the ticket has not been signed by the defendant. If the amount sent is insufficient, then the money received by the clerk shall be considered to be a partial payment of the penalty, and it shall be applied by the clerk to the fine and costs and shall be deposited as required by law. The clerk may give notice of the insufficiency, and a supplemental summons or warrant of arrest shall be issued for the defendant's arrest, and a judgment shall be entered by the magistrate for the balance due; or

- (3) Sign the MOT and agree to appear in court on the date and at the time shown on the MOT to protest the charges. If the defendant fails to appear, the municipal court may, in its discretion, issue further notice or a supplemental summons or warrant of arrest.
- (c) Employees of the city designated as enforcement officers, who observe violations of Chapter 25, are further authorized to appeal before a magistrate and request a summons or warrant to be issued pursuant to Rule 3.1 of the Alabama Rules of Criminal Procedure.
- (d) Employees of the city designated as enforcement officers may issue corrective notices to owners or occupants found to be in violation of any of the provisions of Chapter 25. The issuance of a corrective notice is not required prior to the issuance of an MOT or UNTCC.

# Sec. 25-32 - Failure to comply with corrective notices.

It shall be a violation for any owner or occupant of property in the city limits who receives a corrective notice from an enforcement officer to fail or refuse to complete the corrective action within the time designated.

#### Sec. 25-33 - Penalties.

- (a) It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any provision of Chapter 25.
- (b) Knowing violation of article. For any violation of this article that is committed knowingly, the fine shall be three hundred fifty dollars (\$350.00), or imprisonment for up to three (3) months, or a combination thereof.
- (c) Other violations of article. For all violations of this article that are not subject to paragraph (b) above, the fine shall be two hundred dollars (\$200.00), or imprisonment for up to thirty (30) days, or a combination thereof.
- (d) Each day a violation of this article is committed or permitted to continue shall constitute a separate offense.
- (e) Any person who appears in municipal court and is found guilty of a violation of this chapter may, in the discretion of the court, be punished by a fine of up to three hundred and fifty dollars (\$350.00) or imprisonment of up to three (3) months, or a combination thereof; or, in the alternative, may be subject to any lawful order including without limitation, community service or remedial action, including but not limited to picking up litter.
- (f) A schedule of fines for violations of this article shall be published in the municipal court magistrate's fine schedule, which appears at section 1-32 of the City Code.

# ARTICLE VI. SEPTAGE AND GREASE HAULER REGULATIONS

# Sec. 25-40 - Title

This body of regulations shall be known as the septage and grease hauler regulations. (Ord. No. 25-086, § 1, 11-26-02)

# Sec. 25-41 - Findings and purpose.

- (a) The United States District for the Southern District of Alabama, Southern Division, entered a consent decree in a civil action styled United States of America, the State of Alabama, and Mobile Bay Watch, Inc. versus the Board of Water and Sewer Commissioners of the City of Mobile, Alabama, Case No. CV-99-0595-CB-S and 2002-58-CB-S.
- (b) The consent decree requires the board of water and sewer commissioners (hereafter the "board") to develop, among other things, a grease control program.
- (c) In order to comply with the court's consent decree, the board has asked the city to cooperate by imposing reasonable regulations upon companies that are licensed by the
- (d) The city believes that the board's request is reasonable and desires to accommodate the board; and the city further finds that such a policy is desirable and promotes the public health, safety and welfare as it will prevent unlicensed operation of such companies and will reduce illegal discharges of septage and grease.

# Sec. 25-42 – License required.

No person shall engage in the business as a septage or grease hauler within the city or its police jurisdiction without first obtaining a business license in accordance with chapter 34 of the Mobile City Code.

# Sec. 25-43 – Operating requirements.

- (a) It shall be a violation of this code for any grease hauler or septage hauler to dispose of any waste at any location other than a disposal site permitted to accept such waste by the Alabama Department of Environmental Management (ADEM), the Alabama State Board of Health, the state department of agriculture, or another governmental agency with authority to permit such activity.
- (b) Every vehicle used by any septage or grease hauler must prominently display on the exterior of the vehicle in at least four-inch lettering the following information: company name, business license number and business telephone number.
- (c) Every vehicle used by any septage or grease hauler must maintain a chain of custody or manifest for each pick up, disposal or other service provided for each customer. Such document must identify the source of waste hauled, the type of waste hauled, the date and time waste were accepted by the hauling company, the amount of waste accepted, the disposal location for waste, and any applicable permit numbers associated with the process. When waste is removed from a food service facility, a copy of the completed manifest must be returned to the originating facility.
- (d) Any violation of this code section, may result in the issuance of a MOT or UNTCC to the operator and or vehicle's owner of the septage or grease hauler vehicle.

The ordinance was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Carroll moved to table the ordinance, which was seconded by Councilmember Daves and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the ordinance tabled.

ANNEX CERTAIN PROPERTY INTO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF MOBILE; 3865 REMINGTON COURT. The following ordinance which was introduced and read at the regular meeting of March 5, 2024, and held over until the regular meeting of March 12, 2024, was called up by the Presiding Officer.

ORDINANCE: 83-021-2024

Sponsored by: Mayor Stimpson and Councilmember Gregory

WHEREAS, Arthur W. Faris, Jr. and Jessica L. Faris, husband and wife, are the owners of real property situated in the County of Mobile located at 3865 Remington Court, Mobile, Alabama 36618, said property being described as follows:

LOT 24, REMINGTON SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO MAP OR PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 46, PAGE 122 OF THE PUBLIC RECOREDS IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE OF MOBILE COUNTY, ALABAMA.

Paracel Number: 2304202000004.010

Key Number: 2290425

Property Address: 3865 Remington Court

Mobile, Al 36618

WHEREAS, Arthur W. Faris, Jr. and Jessica Faris have submitted a Petition for Annexation asking that their property be annexed to and become a part of the City of Mobile; and,

WHEREAS, said Petition contained the signatures of all of the owners of the described property and a map of said property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the City of Mobile; and,

WHEREAS, the property owned by Arthur W. Faris, Jr. and Jessica L. Faris, which is hereinafter described, is contiguous to the corporate limits of the City of Mobile, and does not lie within the corporate limits of any other municipality; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mobile has determined that it is in the public interest that said property be annexed to the City of Mobile and the Council has further determined that all legal requirements for annexing said real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-24 of the Code of Alabama.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE, as follows:

- 1. That the City Council of the City of Mobile finds and declares as the legislative body of the City that it is in the best interests of the citizens of the City, and the citizens of the affected area, to bring the territory described in paragraph 2 of this Ordinance into the corporate limits of the City of Mobile.
- 2. That the boundary lines of the City of Mobile be, and the same hereby are, altered and rearranged so as to include all the property here to before encompassed by the corporate limits of the City, and in addition thereto the following described property, to-wit:

LOT 24, REMINGTON SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO MAP OR PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 46, PAGE 122 OF THE PUBLIC RECOREDS IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE OF MOBILE COUNTY, ALABAMA.

Parcel Number: 2304202000004.010

Key Number: 2290425

Property Address: 3865 Remington Court

Mobile, Al 36618

A map depicting the property to be annexed is attached hereto and incorporated herein. In the event of a conflict between the attached map and the written description of the

property described above, the depiction of the property on the attached map shall control and be given effect.

- 3. This Ordinance shall be published as provided by law, and a certified copy of same, together with a certified copy of the Petition of the property owners, shall be filed with the Probate Judge of Mobile County, Alabama.
- 4. The property described in this Ordinance shall become a part of the corporate limits of the City of Mobile upon publication of this Ordinance as set forth in paragraph 3.

The ordinance was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Daves moved to adopt the ordinance, which was seconded by Councilmember Carroll and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the ordinance adopted.

# CONSENT RESOLUTIONS HELD OVER

RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO THE ABC BOARD FOR ISSUANCE OF A LOUNGE RETAIL LIQUOR CLASS I LICENSE TO THE STICKY ROOSTER; 5335 HWY 90. The following resolution which was introduced and read at the regular meeting of March 5, 2024, and held over until the regular meeting of March 12, 2024, was called up by the Presiding Officer.

RESOLUTION: 37-205-2024

Sponsored by: Councilmember Reynolds

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MOBILE, ALABAMA, that the following application to the Alabama Alcoholic Beverage Control Board of the State of Alabama, is hereby recommended for grant of such license by said Board.

Type of application: Lounge Retail Liquor Class I License

Submitted by: Greggory Allen Tosspon

Location: The Sticky Rooster

5335 Highway 90 Mobile, Al 36619

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Reynolds moved to hold the resolution over for one week which was seconded by Councilmember Daves and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the resolution held over for one week until the regular meeting of March 19, 2024.

# **RESOLUTIONS HELD OVER**

APPROVE PURCHASE ORDER TO UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH ALABAMA FOR EMT CERTIFICATION CLASS FOR MFRD; \$83,892.00. The following resolution which was introduced and read at the regular meeting of March 5, 2024, and held over until the regular meeting of March 12, 2024, was called up by the Presiding Officer.

RESOLUTION: 08-208-2024

Sponsored by: Mayor Stimpson

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MOBILE, ALABAMA, that the Purchasing Agent is authorized to execute, for and on behalf of the City of Mobile, a purchase order to the indicated vendor in the approximate amount stated, and to approve the supporting bid award if required, for the following requisition as indicated below and attached herein:

Requisition		Department	Description	Amount	Vendor
	Year				
5256	2024	(1510) FIRE	EMT CERTIFICATION	\$83,892.00	(281269)
		ADMINISTRATION	CLASS FOR MFRD		UNIVERSITY OF
			(PROFESSIONAL		<u>SOUTH</u>
			SERVICE,		<u>ALABAMA</u>
			INTERGOVERNMENTAL)		

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Reynolds moved to adopt the resolution which was seconded by Councilmember Daves and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the resolution adopted.

AUTHORIZE CONTRACT WITH CANON SOLUTIONS OF AMERICA FOR PRINTER RENTAL, SUPPLIES, AND SUPPORT SERVICES FOR MPD; \$68,293.53. The following resolution which was introduced and read at the regular meeting of March 5, 2024, and held over until the regular meeting of March 12, 2024, was called up by the Presiding Officer.

RESOLUTION: 21-209-2024

Sponsored by: Mayor Stimpson

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE, ALABAMA, that the Mayor and the City Clerk be, and they hereby are, authorized to execute and attest, respectively, for and on behalf of the City of Mobile, a contract, by and between the City of Mobile and Canon Solutions America, for rental of printers and for printer support services and supplies for Police Department as needed in an approximate amount of \$68,293.53 for three years at unit pricing as outlined in the contract attached hereto and made a part hereof as though set forth in full. A Copy of said contract is on file in the Office of the City Clerk.

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Reynolds moved to adopt the resolution which was seconded by Councilmember Daves and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the resolution adopted.

AUTHORIZE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF CLAIMS; WATTS. The following resolution which was introduced and read at the regular meeting of March 5,

2024, and held over until the regular meeting of March 12, 2024, was called up by the Presiding Officer.

RESOLUTION: 60-210-2024

Sponsored by: Mayor Stimpson

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mobile, that the City Attorney and the City Council Attorney, or their respective designees, be, and they hereby are, authorized to execute for and on behalf of the City of Mobile and the City Council of the City of Mobile, Alabama, the Settlement Agreement and Release of Claims arising out of the claim of Cynthia Watts, as outlined in the Settlement Agreement and Release of Claims. A copy of the said settlement agreement is on file in the Office of the City Clerk.

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Reynolds moved to adopt the resolution which was seconded by Councilmember Daves and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the resolution adopted.

RESOLUTION STATING CHANGES TO MOBILE POLICE DEPARTMENT POLICY REGARDING "NO-KNOCK WARRANTS" AND "PRE-DAWN RAIDS" SHALL BE DISCLOSED TO THE CITY COUNCIL. The following resolution which was introduced and read at the regular meeting of March 5, 2024, and held over until the regular meeting of March 12, 2024, was called up by the Presiding Officer.

RESOLUTION: 60-214-2024

Sponsored by: Councilmember Penn

WHEREAS "no-knock" and "pre-dawn" raids by law enforcement authorities are increasingly viewed as dangerous and require strict scrutiny; and

WHEREAS it is desirable that law enforcement no-knock raids and raids in predawn hours only be conducted in circumstances warranting such an action for the safety of law enforcement officers and the citizens of Mobile; and

WHEREAS there is a need for the circumstances under which such raids are approved and occur to be clear:

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE, ALABAMA, that any changes to Mobile Police Department policy regarding "no-knock warrants" and "pre-dawn raids" shall be immediately disclosed to the Mobile City Council.

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Penn moved to hold the resolution over for one week, which was seconded by Councilmember Reynolds and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the resolution held over for one week until the regular meeting of March 19, 2024.

# **ORDINANCES BEING INTRODUCED**

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 25 GARBAGE, TRASH AND LITTER OF THE MOBILE CITY CODE. The following ordinance was held over until the regular meeting of March 19, 2024.

RESOLUTION: 25-022-2024

Sponsored by: Mayor Stimson

# CHAPTER 25 GARBAGE, TRASH, AND LITTER

### **ARTICLE 1. GARBAGE AND TRASH**

# Sec. 25-1 - Applicability and Rule of Construction

- (a) Except where otherwise provided, the provisions of this article apply throughout the City limits.
- (b) If any portion of this article is held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, then such judgment shall in no way affect or impair the validity of the remaining portions of this article.

### Sec. 25-2 - Definitions

As used in this article, the following terms are defined as follows:

- (1) Apartment is a separate dwelling unit occupied by a single household in a multi-dwelling unit.
- (2) *Balloon* is a flexible nonporous bag made from materials such as rubber, latex, polychloroprene, or nylon fabric that can be inflated or filled with gases and/or fluids, such as helium, hydrogen, nitrous oxide, oxygen, air, or water and then sealed at the neck, usually used as a toy or decoration.
- (3) *Balloon Release*: Any knowing or intentional act resulting in balloons being displayed or released out of doors and allowed to fly in any manner that results in the loss of control over the balloon or the abandonment of the balloon.
- (4) Bulk container is any dumpster, roll-off container, or stationary storage facility placed for the temporary containerization of solid waste at a place of business, multi-dwelling unit complex, industrial or construction site, and is covered or constructed to eliminate wind-driven debris and unsightly litter on or about the premises.
- (5) *Business* means a sole proprietorship, partnership, joint venture, corporation, or other business entity, either for-profit or not-for-profit, including retail establishments where goods or services are sold, professional corporations and other entities where legal, medical, dental, engineering, architectural, or other professional services are delivered, and private clubs.
- (6) Cigarette litter receptacle is a container for the disposal of litter from smoking including cigarettes, cigars and their butts.
- (7) City means the City of Mobile, in the County of Mobile, in the State of Alabama.
- (8) City limits are the corporate boundaries of the City.
- (9) Commercial premises is any lot or any building, or part thereof, used in connection with or for the conduct of any business, trade, occupation, or any profession for which a license is required by the City, and includes all unimproved real property not zoned for single-family residential use.

- (10) Commercial waste means refuse from commercial premises including garbage, trash, kitchen waste, restaurant waste, food containers, paper, floor litter, sidewalk sweepings, leaves, grass, weeds, hedge trimmings, tree trimmings, and includes waste generated from a business operating on residential premises and waste generated from multi dwelling units.
- (11) *Condominium* is a suite of rooms which compose a residence in a multi-dwelling unit, which the occupant(s) owns or rents from the owner.
- (12) Construction Debris means rubbish resulting from construction, demolition, or alteration of any building or structure, including scrap, lumber, plaster, roofing, concrete, brick and sanding dust, mortar and glass, resulting from the construction, repair, remodeling, removal, or demolition of any structure.
- (13) Corrective notice is a written notice or warning issued by an enforcement officer to inform the recipient of a violation of this article and specifying a period of time in which to correct the violation. A corrective notice does not impose a fine.
- (14) *Domestic waste:* Any waste capable of entering into or passing through a plumbing system. Such waste includes but is not limited to human excrement, bath water, kitchen and bathroom waste and waste from septic tanks, sumps, outhouses, or any other waste collection point. The term domestic waste does not include waste from any commercial or industrial process that is authorized by Mobile Area Water and Sewer System to be discharged into a sewage collection system.
- (15) *Downtown Business District* means the area bounded by the Mobile River on the east, Canal Street on the south, Broad Street on the west, and Beauregard Street on the north.
- (16) Enforcement Officer means a City of Mobile employee designated by the Mayor as the person to exercise the authority, enforce the provisions and perform the duties delegated by this Chapter in accord with the prescribed procedures of this jurisdiction.
- (17) Food service facility Any establishment, retail food store, public or private school, correctional facility, hospital, food processing or preparing establishment, or other establishment where food is prepared for sale or offered for sale, including any establishment that slaughters, fabricates, bones, or processes animals, poultry, or fish whether or not required by law to be licensed or permitted by an agency of the state.
- (18) Garbage means all discarded foods, animal and vegetable matter, putrescible substances and food and drink packaging. Garbage does not include liquid or bodily waste.
- (19) Garbage cart is a 64- or 96-gallon container provided by the City for use with its automated garbage collection system.
- (20) *Grease hauler:* Any person who removes fat, oil, or grease waste of any form from a premises by means of transporting the waste over a public road. This includes waste from grease traps, grease interceptors, grease collection bins, or any other fats, oils, or grease collection point.
- (21) Hazardous materials/waste means a substance in quantity and form which may pose an unreasonable risk to human health and safety or to the environment, including private property. Additionally, the definition of Hazardous waste includes any material regulated under Resource Conservation and Recovery Act Subtitle C (42 U.S.C. §§ 6921 6939g) including waste generated in the course of operating a business at a residence. Hazardous Materials includes pesticides, herbicides, fertilizer, antifreeze, batteries, acids, cleaners, paint, medications, fluorescent light bulbs, railroad ties, and petroleum products.
- (22) Household means a single-family residence, an individual mobile home, and/or a multi-family residence.

- (23) Household garbage means putrescible solid waste as well as ordinary waste generated by a household. This term does not include sewage, bodily waste, or ashes. Applies to areas zoned as single-family, duplex, tri-plex, or quad-plex. This term does not include multi-dwelling unit waste and waste generated in the course of operating a business at a residence.
- (24) Household trash means non-putrescible solid waste consisting of yard clippings, leaves, wood, tree limbs and trunks, bedding, appliances, furniture, paper and cardboard, plastics, wood, wrappings, cans, and similar materials, but not ashes. This term does not include multi-dwelling unit waste and waste generated in the course of operating a business at a residence.
- (25) *Junk* refers to any vehicle parts, rubber tires, appliances, furniture, machinery, equipment, building material, or other items which are either in a wholly or partially rusted, wrecked, scrapped, dismantled or inoperative condition. This term includes a vehicle with one or more of the following characteristics: it is non-operating, abandoned, wrecked, or partially dismantled; or it has flat tires, or a missing engine, door(s), hood, windows, or other missing body parts.
- (26) *Knowingly* means a person is aware of taking the action, behavior, or conduct which amounts to committing a violation. It is not a requirement that the person has knowledge that the behavior is an offense.
- (27) *Litter* means any garbage, refuse, or noncontainerized man-made solid waste, such as paper, plastic, diapers, cigarette butts, bottles, cans, glass, crockery, scrap metal, construction materials, rubbish, disposable packages, or containers.
- (28) Litter receptacle is a container constructed and placed for use as a depository for litter.
- (29) *Manufactured home* means a building, transportable in one (1) or more sections, which is built on a permanent chassis and designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities. The term also includes park trailers, travel trailers, recreational vehicles, mobile homes, and similar transportable structures placed on a site and intended to be improved property.
- (30) *Manufactured home park* means any plot of ground on which two (2) or more mobile homes, manufactured homes, or recreational vehicles (RVs) are located. The facilities servicing the lot include, at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pad(s).
- (31) *Multi-dwelling unit* is a building in which five or more multiple separate housing units for residential occupants are contained in one building or several buildings within one complex and under the same ownership or with multiple owners. Condominiums or apartments may compose the buildings in a multi-dwelling unit.
- (32) *Multi-family residence* means two, three, or four family separate residential units in a single residential structure, such as a duplex, triplex, or fourplex.
- (33) Municipal offense ticket (MOT) is a citation specifying a violation of a City ordinance issued by an enforcement officer of the City and directs the violator either to pay a fine and court costs or to appear in municipal court to answer the charge(s).
- (34) *Occupant* is any owner, tenant, or person residing, in possession or in charge of any house, building, store, shop, lot, or premises.
- (35) Owner is any person, agent, firm or corporation having legal title to the real property, including any mortgage holder, bank, lien holder, company, institution, individual or other entity listed in the records of the office of the judge of probate of county, and/or the estate of any deceased owner(s), and/or the last assessed owner in the property tax records of the county revenue commissioner.

- (36) *Person* means an individual, partnership, association, syndicate, company, firm, trust, corporation, government, department, bureau, agency, business, or any entity recognized by law, and any agents of those entities.
- (37) *Places of assembly* are buildings, structures, or portions of a building or structure used for the gathering of persons for purposes such as civic, social, or religious functions, recreation, food or drink consumption, or for awaiting transportation.
- (38) *Premises* means any building or real property.
- (39) Private property is property owned by any person as defined herein.
- (40) *Private road or driveway* shall mean every road or driveway not open to the use of the public for purposes of vehicular travel.
- (41) *Public nuisance* includes any uncultivated growth of weeds, scrub (wild) bushes, and grass exceeding community standards, normally ten inches in height, and/or nonorganic debris that presents a fire hazard, a health hazard, a flooding hazard, a safety hazard, or otherwise endangers human health and safety or the environment.
- (42) *Putrescible* means an item that will rot or decay, such as food waste, and therefore is likely to attract vermin and other vectors.
- (43) Qualified Business Enterprise is a restaurant, bar, or other substantially similar establishment approved and registered by the Public Services Department operating within the Downtown Business District as defined in this chapter. All businesses receiving services prior to passage of this ordinance revision will be automatically registered and continue receiving services until such time as the business is sold, transferred, or conveyed at which that time, the new business would be required to meet all requirements of this chapter.
- (44) *Refuse* is a term applied generally to trash, garbage, debris, litter, and any discarded materials.
- (45) Residential premises are premises used as single- or multi-family dwellings, townhouses, apartments, and condominiums, both privately and publicly owned.
- (46) Scrap Tire means a tire that is no longer suitable for its original intended purpose because of wear, damage or defect or has been discarded with the intent of final disposal.
- (47) Septage hauler Any person who removes domestic waste from a premises and transports the waste over a public road.
- (48) Single-family residence means a structure maintained and used as a single-dwelling unit. Notwithstanding that a dwelling unit shares one or more walls with another dwelling unit, it is a single-family residence if it has direct access to a street or thoroughfare and shares neither heating facilities, hot water equipment, nor any other essential facility or service with another dwelling unit. The dwelling may be owner-occupied or tenant occupied.
- (49) Sky lantern means an airborne lantern typically made of paper with a wood or wire frame containing a candle, fuel cell composed of a waxy flammable material or other open flame which serves as a heat source to heat the air inside the lantern to cause it to lift into the air. Sky lanterns shall not include hot-air balloons used for transporting persons.
- (50) *Trash* is non-putrescible solid waste consisting of yard clippings, leaves, wood, tree limbs and trunks, bedding, appliances, paper and cardboard, plastics, wood, wrappings, cans, and similar materials.

- (51) *UNTCC* is a uniform non-traffic citation and complaint as set out in Rule 20 of the Alabama Rules of Judicial Administration. When issued electronically, it is known as an UNTCC.
- (52) *UTCC* is a uniform traffic citation and complaint as set out in Rule 20 of the Alabama Rules of Judicial Administration.
- (53) Vehicle is any device capable of moving and transporting persons or property upon a public highway, street, or waterway. This shall include any watercraft, boat, ship, vessel, barge, or other floating craft. For the purposes of this ordinance, Vehicle does not include devices moved by human power and those vehicles used exclusively for agricultural purposes, not licensed pursuant to state law, and that are not operated on any public highway for purposes other than crossing such public highways or along such highways between two tracts of the owner's land.

# Sec. 25-3 - Department of Public Services, Public Works

- (a) The Department of Public Services may from time to time establish guidelines consistent with the provisions of Chapter 25 in order to implement and effectuate the application of said provisions.
- (b) The pickup schedule for household garbage and household trash will be fixed under guidelines and procedures implemented by the Department of Public Services. Any changes will be made public a minimum of two weeks prior to the change being implemented.
- (c) Changes in pickup schedules due to emergency or natural disaster will be published on the City of Mobile website at www.CityofMobile.org.

# Sec. 25-4 - General Requirements

It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally damage, remove, handle or to otherwise disturb the garbage cart or the contents thereof which have been placed on city right of way for servicing by the garbage collectors; provided, that this section does not apply to the owner, occupant, lessee, or tenant of the residence or dwelling so placing the container and contents.

### Sec. 25-5 - Household garbage.

- (a) *Frequency.* Pickup of household garbage is once per week based on the household address. Holiday schedules may vary.
- (b) Garbage cart issuance. The City of Mobile will assign an initial 96-gallon or 64-gallon garbage cart to newly constructed residential units. All existing households eligible for collection are required to have a City assigned garbage cart. An additional or replacement garbage cart may be assigned to the address by the City for a fee (for a total limit of 2 per household). Title of the garbage cart shall at all times remain with the City. Payment options can be found by checking the City of Mobile website at www.CityofMobile.org or by calling Mobile 311 at 251-208-5311.
- (c) Garbage carts.
  - (1) All household garbage shall be contained inside plastic bags and placed inside of a city-issued garbage cart. All garbage carts shall be closed to prevent animals from scattering the garbage. Garbage carts overloaded so that lids will not close will not be picked up.
  - (2) No intentional marking, drawing, or writing, or the intentional etching onto the exterior of the garbage cart is allowed. Address may be added to the inside of the lid using any preferred method except etching.
  - (3) Removal of garbage cart from the assigned address shall be prohibited.
  - (4) If the garbage cart is damaged by the City of Mobile beyond the point of serviceability, it will be replaced or repaired at no cost to the homeowner.

- (5) Failure to comply with any provision of 25-5(c) shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof.
- (d) *Quantity*. Each household shall be limited up to two (2) city issued garbage carts. Unauthorized garbage carts will not be picked up.
- (e) *Maintenance*. Garbage carts that have deteriorated to the extent of having jagged or sharp edges capable of causing injury to the garbage collectors or others whose duty it is to handle these carts, will not be collected. Deteriorated carts must be replaced at the cost of household. Garbage carts shall be kept cleaned, maintained, sanitized, and free of any other forms of deterioration inside and outside.
- (f) Location. All garbage carts shall be placed curbside and not placed in the street. Garbage carts should be placed with the handle facing away from the street to ensure the cart is aligned with the garbage truck loading mechanism. Carts placed in medians or on vacant lots will not be collected. Carts shall not obstruct the flow of traffic. Garbage carts not serviced on the scheduled route due to placement or obstruction (i.e., blocked by vehicles, etc.) will not receive additional/return service.
- (g) *Time*. Household garbage containers shall be placed by the curb by 6:00 a.m. on the regular collection day, and empty containers should be returned to the household as soon as possible, but not later than 11:59 p.m. on collection day. If a resident does not know the collection day for their area, they may request this information by contacting Mobile 311 at 251-208-5311 or check the City of Mobile website at www.cityofmobile.org. It shall be a violation of this Chapter punishable under Article Three hereof to allow a container to remain by the curb beyond the time stated above.
- (h) *Hazardous materials/waste*. It shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof to place these materials, as defined in 25-2, in garbage carts even if they are in a plastic bag.
- (i) *Scrap Tires.* It shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof to place these materials, as defined in 25-2, in garbage carts.
- (j) Service on Private roads. Garbage pickup on private roads can be arranged if the roads are sized, and owner maintained sufficiently to allow for the access and movement of City Public Services vehicles. Contact Public Services for procedures and requirements. The City reserves the right to deny or cease service.

### Sec. 25-6 - Household trash.

- (a) *Frequency.* Pick-up is scheduled for every other week. Holidays may cause this schedule to be reduced or changed. See www.cityofmobile.org for the holiday schedule.
- (b) Quantity.
  - (1) Maximum collection limit for pick-up at no additional charge is limited to approximately two (2) cubic yards (3 feet by 3 feet by 6 feet) or the equivalent of fifteen (15) bags of leaves, per household, every other week. (There is no charge for this amount.)
  - (2) Amounts exceeding the maximum collection limit will be considered an oversized load. The household may contact the city to collect an oversized load for a fee. Fee is based on the size of the load. Oversized loads may not reside on the curb unless approved by the City. The Department of Public Services may elect to collect the fee before removing the trash. Information and payment options can be found by checking the City of Mobile website at www.CityofMobile.org or by calling Mobile 311 at 251-208-5311.
  - (3) Where household trash exceeds the maximum allowed, that trash will not be collected, and a corrective notice will be given explaining the violation.
- (c) *Time.* Household trash may not be placed for collection prior to forty-eight (48) hours before the designated pickup day.

- (d) Location. Household trash shall be placed on the property where it originated as close to the street as possible without posing an obstruction to pedestrians or other risk to health and human safety. Trash piles that are not serviced on the scheduled route due to placement or obstruction (i.e., blocked by vehicles, etc.) will not receive additional/return service and it will be the responsibility of the property owner to remove. It shall be a violation of this Article to place household trash in any of the following locations or ways:
  - (1) On medians, on vacant or abandoned residential or commercial property.
  - (2) Obstructing sidewalks.
  - (3) Obstructing gutters, ditches, or any portions of the city's drain system.
  - (4) Obstructing the street, creating a traffic hazard.
  - (5) In a location that could cause a fire hazard, with trash not eligible for city pickup.
  - (6) Around fire hydrants, signposts, guy wires, power poles, over water meters, over masonry work, against fences, or at the base of trees located within the City of Mobile rights-of-way.
  - (7) Under low hanging power lines, TV cables or low tree limbs.
- (e) Leaves, straw, and clippings may be placed by the curb for pickup at the scheduled time if bagged or boxed and limited to the quantities defined above.
- (f) The following materials are not collectible as part of household trash, and it shall be a violation of this Article to place these materials on the curb:
  - (1) Limbs greater than twelve (12) inches in diameter;
  - (2) Limbs greater than six (6) feet in length;
  - (3) Construction debris (including home improvement projects);
  - (4) Materials from commercial projects;
  - (5) Materials from evictions;
  - (6) Any materials accumulated from commercial businesses;
  - (7) Materials from tree removal services (private companies) hired to remove trees or branches; or
  - (8) Scrap tires.
- (g) Service on Private roads. Household trash pickup on private roads can be arranged if the roads are sized, and owner maintained sufficiently to allow for the access and movement of City Public Services vehicles. Contact Public Services for procedures and requirements. The City reserves the right to deny or cease service.
- (h) Failure to comply with any requirement of this Section 25-6 shall be a violation.

### Sec. 25-7 - Hazardous materials/waste.

- (a) It shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof to place or include Hazardous materials/waste with household trash or household garbage. Said matter must be disposed of by the household at a facility legally permitted for the disposal of these items.
- (b) Large volumes and/or non-household broken glass, sharp metal objects, or hypodermic needles and other household medical waste must be disposed of in puncture-proof sealed containers or biohazard waste bags.
- (c) Failure to comply with any requirement of this Section 25-7 shall be a violation.

# Sec. 25-8 – Downtown Business District

- (a) Except as provided below, the City of Mobile does not provide trash or garbage services to businesses or commercial enterprises.
- (b) Commercial waste will be collected once each day from all qualified business enterprises located within the Downtown Business District.
- (c) Garbage Carts.

- (1) Issuance. Garbage carts must be obtained from City for a fee. Title of the garbage cart shall at all times remain with the City. The City will only service City-issued garbage carts. Payment options can be found by checking the City of Mobile website at www.CityofMobile.org or by calling Mobile 311 at 251-208-5311.
- (2) Maintenance. Garbage carts that have deteriorated to the extent of being cracked, having jagged or sharp edges capable of causing injury to the garbage collectors or others whose duty it is to handle these containers, or are leaking will not be collected. Deteriorated carts will be removed and replaced by the City, for a fee paid by the business owner. Garbage carts shall be kept cleaned, maintained, sanitized, and free of any other forms of deterioration inside and outside. If the garbage cart is damaged by the City of Mobile, it will be replaced at no cost to the business owner.
- (3) No intentional marking, drawing, or writing with paint, ink, or another substance on, or the intentional etching onto the exterior of the garbage cart is allowed. Address may be added to the inside of the lid using any preferred method except etching. Businesses may add their company name on the handle side of the cart no larger than 6 inches tall by 12 inches wide.
- (4) It shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof to intentionally damage or remove a garbage cart from the assigned address.
- (d) Quantity. All garbage consisting of kitchen waste, restaurant waste, food refuse or other matter offensive in sight or smell shall be bagged and placed in city-issued garbage carts. The combined weight of garbage and cart shall not exceed one hundred (100) pounds each; garbage carts weighing in excess of one hundred (100) pounds will not be picked up.
- (e) Location. Containers of commercial waste may be placed for collection on or near the curb line of the originating place of business, including streets at the front or rear, or the alley of that business's property, providing the alley is accessible to the collectors' trucks at the time of collection of garbage. Placement areas shall be kept cleaned, maintained, and sanitized. Carts shall not obstruct the flow of traffic.
- (f) *Time*. Garbage Carts in the Downtown Business District shall not reside on the sidewalk or curb between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. After the garbage has been collected, the owners of the garbage carts shall remove them from the streets and sidewalks of the city not later than two hours after the garbage has been collected. Garbage carts may be placed in alleys at any time.
- (g) All parking lots, within the Downtown Business District, must be cleaned of all litter, trash, and debris at a minimum of once every 24 hours, and more often if litter from the parking lot is found on neighboring properties.
- (h) Failure to comply with any provision of 25-8 shall be a violation of this section punishable under Article Three hereof.

#### Sec. 25-9 – Commercial, Outside of Downtown Business District

- (a) The provisions of this section shall apply to all Commercial Enterprises, Multi-dwelling units, manufactured home parks, and places of assembly that are located outside of the Downtown Business District.
- (b) Commercial pickup outside the business district will be arranged by the owner or occupant of the commercial enterprise.
- (c) Commercial premises shall install dumpsters, bulk containers, or other containers to be emptied on a timely basis at the owner or occupant's expense.
- (d) All dumpsters shall be affixed with an identification decal, which is legible and waterproof, that includes the following information:
  - (1) The name of the entity or business using the dumpster;

- (2) If the business is also the owner of the property, the name, address, and telephone number of the person who is authorized to accept legal service for the owner; and
- (3) If the business is a tenant on the property, the name address and telephone number of the person who is authorized to accept legal service for the tenant.
- (e) In the event that an owner or occupant of commercial premises elects to enclose a dumpster or secure the dumpster with an automatic lock release in accordance with subsection (e) or is required to do so as provided in subsection (e), then said owner or operator must ensure the conditions noted below are met. Dumpster enclosures are not optional for an owner or occupant that has committed a second violation of Sec. 25-10 of this ordinance, in which case the City requires the owner or occupant to enclose the dumpster and secure it by installing an automatic lock.
  - (1) Dumpster enclosures must meet the following criteria:
    - (a) Constructed of wood or brick and at least the height of the dumpster, which is being enclosed, but not to exceed eight (8) feet in height.
    - (b) The dumpster enclosure may be equipped with a door or gate constructed of wood or other opaque material that opens outward and which remains closed unless the dumpster is being filled or emptied.
    - (c) The dumpster enclosure must be of sufficient size to allow for placement and removal of the dumpster without causing damage to the enclosure.
    - (d) The dumpster enclosure must be kept in good repair and condition.
    - (e) Failure to comply with any provision above shall be a violation of this Article. Any owner or occupant of commercial premises that has a dumpster located thereon who pleads guilty to a violation of this section, or is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be guilty of violating this section, may, on a first offense, be allowed the option to either pay the applicable fine and costs, or alternatively, to enclose the dumpster or secure the dumpster with an automatic lock release in accordance with the requirements of this section within the sixty-day period following the guilty plea or adjudication. Upon a second violation of this section, the occupant shall be required to enclose the dumpster or secure the dumpster with an automatic lock release in accordance with the requirements of this section in addition to all other fines, penalties, and costs that may be imposed. For purposes of this section, failure by the defendant to either pay a fine or appear in court as required by a properly served charging document shall be considered the same as pleading guilty to violating this section.
      - (1) To be deemed secured under this section, the dumpster must have a functioning automatic lock release, sometimes called a gravity lock release or similar product, that will cause the lid of the dumpster to be securely closed and sealed whenever the dumpster is not being filled or emptied.
- (f) It shall be unlawful for any person to deliver, pick up, empty or raise any dumpster, or any roll-off box or container in any residential district zoned as R-1, R-2, R-3, or R-B, or within five hundred (500) feet of the property line of any property that is zoned R-1, R-2, R-3, or R-B, during the hours from 10:00 p.m. until 6:00 a.m. The exception to this provision is within the downtown business district or on any school or college property. For purposes of this section, the area is bounded on the North by St. Anthony Street from the Mobile River to Claiborne, then by St. Michael Street from Claiborne Street to Washington Avenue; on the West by Washington Avenue; on the South by Government Street from Washington Avenue to Claiborne Street, then by Church Street to the Mobile River; and on the East by the Mobile River.
- (g) All parking lots, outside and within the Business district, must be cleaned of all litter, trash, and debris at a minimum of once every 24 hours, and more often if litter from the parking lot is found on neighboring properties.
- (h) Failure to comply with any requirement of this Section 25-9 shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof.

#### Sec. 25-10 - Commercial Waste/Collection

- (a) It shall be the duty of each owner, occupant, tenant, or lessee of any commercial premises, multi-dwelling unit premises, manufactured home park, or places of assembly to keep the premises clear and free of litter, trash, junk, and high grass and weeds as defined under "public nuisance" in Section 25-2 Definitions. These areas include grounds, parking lots, roads, driveways, rights-of-way, loading and unloading areas, storm drains, vacant lots, and unimproved real property. See Sec. 52-56 for the circumstances in which the City may declare a nuisance.
- (b) All persons performing construction and demolition work shall provide on-site receptacles for loose debris, building material waste, scrap building materials, and other litter products sufficient to prevent the scattering of such materials by wind or rain.
- (c) All owners or occupants of commercial premises shall provide on-site receptacles for loose debris and other litter products to prevent the scattering of such materials by wind or rain.
- (d) No owner or occupant of commercial premises who is not a licensed junk dealer may grant permission to any person to dispose of litter, garbage, trash, or junk on the premises.
- (e) All owners or occupants of commercial premises shall store their trash, garbage, or litter in appropriately sized litter receptacles and/or dumpsters; maintain their premises as clean, neat, and sanitary; and shall prevent litter from blowing or washing onto adjacent property thoroughfares or into storm drains or waterways. Spillage and overflow around containers shall be cleaned up as it occurs, but no later than 24 hours after the spillage/overflow.
- (f) Where commercial enterprises share parking lots, the occupant and/or owner shall designate who will be responsible for the container. That designated enterprise shall put their name and contact information on the container and take ownership over its maintenance.
- (g) Containers (litter receptacles and/or dumpsters) required by this section shall be of sufficient size to hold the litter and other waste from visitors to the commercial enterprise between emptying of the container(s). If the container is overflowing, additional or larger containers must be added.
- (h) The occupant and/or owner of each commercial enterprise is responsible for emptying and otherwise maintaining the containers to limit litter, waste, or debris in the area.
- (i) Any owner or occupant of commercial premises that has a litter receptacle located within the parking lots, who pleads guilty to a violation of this section, or is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be guilty of violating this section, may, on a first offense, be allowed the option to either pay the applicable fine and costs, or alternatively, provide appropriate containers, labeled with the responsible party's (Dumpster info 25-11-d) distributed evenly throughout the parking lot at a rate of one container every 20 parking places or at a maximum of a 60-foot spacing between each container for all on-site. Upon a second violation of this section, the owner or occupant if found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be guilty shall pay the applicable fine, court costs and provide one garbage can for every 20 parking spaces as required by this section. For purposes of this section, failure by the defendant to either pay a fine or appear in court as required by a properly served charging document shall be considered the same as pleading guilty to violating this section.
- (j) Failure to comply with any requirement of this Section 25-10 shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof.

Sec. 25-11 - Vehicles hauling garbage, trash, and refuse.

- (a) Each truck or other vehicle used in the business of collecting and hauling trash, garbage and refuse for hire shall be designed so that the cargo does not escape the vehicle. Any said vehicle shall have the following characteristics:
  - (1) The vehicle shall have solid sides, a tailgate, a cover, and be watertight;
  - (2) The sides and tailgate should be at least four (4) feet in height.
  - (3) The top should be solid or rigged with a tarpaulin that can be spread tightly over the top of such truck to cover the entire opening and extend 12" down the sides. The solid top or tarpaulin shall be used at any time the vehicle is moving, except in those instances where the vehicle is collecting waste and moving fewer than one hundred (100) yards at a speed less than 15 mph.
  - (4) Tanks, containers and other receptacles shall be watertight and operators shall use covers or lids in such a manner as to prevent the dropping, escaping, or spilling of any waste upon the road, street, alley, or any public or private property.
- (b) If trash, garbage or refuse leaves a vehicle, the operator shall collect it at that time
- (c) Each truck, trailer, or other vehicle used in the business of collecting and hauling of trash, garbage and refuse for hire shall have the capacity in cubic yards of the dump bed, dump box, truck bed, or trailer bed or vehicle painted in five-inch letters on the left side of the body near the cab. Each truck or vehicle shall have signs painted on both doors of the truck or vehicle indicating the correct name of the hauler and their telephone number.
- (d) No such truck or other vehicle shall be used in the business of collecting and hauling trash, garbage and refuse unless there has been a City license procured by the operator thereof, and the City Revenue Department may refuse to issue a license for any such truck until such truck has been examined by the city police department inspection official and approved as complying with the provisions of this section. The license number for any such truck shall be prominently displayed and affixed outside of such truck to the left front door of the cab. Every such license shall be subject to revocation for a violation of any of the provisions of this chapter or any other ordinance of the city pursuant to the provisions for revocation of city licenses set forth in the license code of the city.
- (e) It shall also be unlawful for any person to pick up construction or demolition material, garbage, trash, rubbish, recyclable materials, or any combination thereof, with a truck which has a compactor or the capacity to raise, move, or empty any dumpster, or any roll-off box or container, in any residential district zoned as R-1, R-2, R-3, or R-B, or within five hundred (500) feet of the property line of any property that is zoned R-1, R-2, R-3, or R-B, during the hours from 10:00 p.m. until 6:00 a.m. The exception to this provision is within the downtown business district or on any school or college property. For purposes of this section, the area is bounded on the North by St. Anthony Street from the Mobile River to Claiborne, then by St. Michael Street from Claiborne Street to Washington Avenue; on the West by Washington Avenue; on the South by Government Street from Washington Avenue to Claiborne Street, then by Church Street to the Mobile River; and on the East by the Mobile River.
- (f) Failure to comply with any provision of this section shall be a violation punishable under Article Three hereof.
- (g) The provision of Sections 25-11 shall not apply to a responsible government agency which deposits sand or other substance to increase traction, or water or other substance to clean or maintain a street or roadway.

# ARTICLE II. LITTER1

Sec. 25-20 – Cleaning litter, trash, or junk from private property.

- (a) The owner of any vacant or unoccupied private property shall at all times keep it clear of litter, garbage, junk, or trash. The owner must also dispose of litter, garbage, junk, or trash located on that property in accordance with all sections of this ordinance. It shall not be a defense that the litter was placed or caused by a third party.
- (b) Licensed junk dealers or commercial premises used for the repair, rebuilding, reconditioning, or salvaging of goods whose work area is screened from public view by a fence, hedge, wall or similar device of sufficient height to provide a visual buffer, and who complies with the city's junk and zoning ordinances shall not be subject to the provisions of this section.
- (c) The failure, neglect or refusal of any owner notified by an enforcement officer to properly dispose of litter, trash, garbage, or junk within ten (10) days after receipt of the notice shall constitute a violation of this article.

# Sec. 25-21 – Litter receptacles.

- (a) Outside the Downtown Business District, every owner or occupant of commercial premises shall, at their own expense, provide, place, and regularly maintain litter receptacles, including cigarette litter receptacles, at entrances, employee smoking areas and common pedestrian transition points. The number of litter receptacles shall be adequate to contain litter generated at these premises. In determining the adequate number of receptacles, it is suggested, but not mandatory except as required by subsection (c) below, that receptacles be distributed evenly throughout the parking lot at a rate of one container every 20 parking places for all on-site parking.
- (b) Litter receptacles on any premises shall meet the following minimum standards:
  - (1) Constructed of such quality as to maintain the receptacle's original shape when kept in an outdoor location and reasonably resistant to rust and corrosion.
  - (2) Constructed and designed or covered in such a manner as to prevent or preclude litter from escaping from the receptacle.
  - (3) Serviced with such frequency as necessary to prevent spillage from overflow and to prevent offensive odor.
- (c) Any owner or occupant who pleads guilty or is found by a court to be guilty of a second violation of this section, shall thereafter provide one (1) litter receptacle for every twenty (20) parking spaces for all on-site parking in addition to any other penalties.
- (d) It shall be a violation of this article for any person to deposit any item except litter into a litter receptacle. It shall be a violation of this article to fail to comply with any provisions of this section.

### Sec. 25-22 - Littering from a vehicle.

- (a) It shall be a violation of this article for any person in a vehicle to drop, deposit, discard or otherwise dispose of litter in or upon any public or private property within the city including but not restricted to, any street, median, right-of-way, sidewalk, park, vacant or occupied lot, body of water, except in litter receptacles or in an area designated by the state department of environmental management as a permitted disposal site.
- (b) The owner of the motor vehicle shall be responsible in the event that any person commits the preceding unlawful acts while in a motor vehicle, whether it is moving or at rest.
- (c) It shall be a violation of this article for any person, hauler, firm, or business falling within Section 25-11 to haul garbage, paper, trash, sand, gravel, wet cement, construction materials, other loose materials, or waste unless the truck or vehicle used is fully covered, secured, or sealed to prevent the following to the public health or the environment:
  - (1) any loss or spillage during hauling,

- (2) littering of streets or highways,
- (3) nuisances,
- (4) or hazards.
- (d) It shall be a violation of this article for any person, hauler, firm, or business in 25-22(c) to allow materials being hauled to spill, drop from, or escape the vehicle, without immediately recovering the lost or spilled materials.
- (e) Any person cleaning litter or junk from private property and operating a vehicle on a public right of way in the city limits from which any glass, nails or other sharp objects have fallen or escaped which could cause an obstruction or damage a vehicle or otherwise endanger travelers on such public property shall immediately cause the public property to be clear of such objects and shall pay any cost thereof. It shall be a violation of this Section to fail to comply with any provision herein.

# Sec. 25-23 - Sweeping litter into street.

(a) It shall be a violation of this article to blow, sweep, or push litter, junk, or trash, including yard clippings, leaves, grass, or cigarette butts, onto the city streets, alleys, stormwater structures, ditches, or waterways. All litter and trash shall be deposited into a garbage cart, garbage can, bag, or box, cigarette litter receptacle or litter receptacle and be tightly covered and secured to prevent scattering before pickup.

# Sec. 25-24 - Dumping of litter, trash, or junk.

- (a) It shall be a violation of this article for any person to discard or dump any litter, garbage, trash, or junk on any private or public property unless granted express permission to dispose of materials in receptacles that comply with the requirements of this chapter or in an area designated by the state department of environmental management as a permitted disposal site (properly permitted landfill).
- (b) For the purposes of this section, items found in an accumulation of garbage, trash or other discarded material including, but not limited to, bank statements, utility bills, bank card bills, and other financial documents, clearly bearing the name of a person, shall constitute a rebuttable presumption that the person whose name appears thereon knowingly deposited the litter. Advertising, marketing and campaign materials and campaign literature shall not be sufficient to constitute a rebuttable presumption under this section. No prosecution for violation of this section based on evidence that creates a rebuttable presumption shall be brought against a person unless he or she has been given written notice by an enforcement officer that items found in an accumulation of garbage, trash or other discarded materials contain his or her name, and that under this section, there is a rebuttable presumption that he or she knowingly deposited the litter. The notice shall advise the person of the penalty for violating this section, and shall provide that, unless the person can present satisfactory information or evidence to rebut the presumption to the designee of the city within fifteen (15) days of the date of the notice, an action under this section may be filed against him or her in municipal court. If the person responds to the notice and presents information or evidence to the designee of the city, the designee is authorized to make a determination as to whether or not an action should be brought against the person for violating this section. Written notice of the City's determination shall be provided to the respondent before an MOT or UNTCC is issued.

# Sec. 25-25 - Removal of litter from litter receptacles.

- (a) The removal of litter from receptacles placed at public parks, beaches, fishing areas and other public recreation sites shall be the responsibility of those state and local agencies responsible for the maintenance of these sites.
- (b) The removal of litter from garbage cans, litter receptacles, or bulk containers placed on private property which are used by the public on commercial premises shall be the duty of the owner or occupant of those premises. It shall be a violation of this article for an

owner or occupant to fail to regularly remove or provide for the regular removal of litter as required by this subsection.

# Sec. 25-26 - Yard, garage sale, or other unauthorized temporary signs.

- (a) It shall be a violation of this article to place any signs on trees or utility poles in the city rights-of-way.
- (b) *Exception*. Notwithstanding the provision of 25-26(a), special event directional signs may be placed on public property in compliance with Chapter 54, Section 122-125.

# Sec. 25-27 – Balloon or Sky Lantern Release.

- (a) It shall be a violation of this Section for any person to intentionally release, organize the release of, or intentionally cause to be released one or more sky lanterns or balloons inflated with gas that is lighter than air which includes but is not limited to, helium, with the exception of:
  - (1) Balloons released by a person or educational institution on behalf of a governmental agency or pursuant to a governmental contract for scientific or meteorological purposes.
  - (2) Balloons released indoors.

### Article III - Enforcement

# Sec. 25-30 - Violations

- (a) The provisions of this Article III apply to provide enforcement procedures with regard to all violations of Chapter 25.
- (b) It is a violation to fail to comply with any provision of Chapter 25. All violations are punishable as per Section 25-33.
- (c) Violations of Chapter 25 may be enforced as applicable by one or more of the following actions: 1) Corrective Notice; 2) Municipal Offense Ticket (MOT); 3) Uniform Non-Traffic Citation and Complaint; and 4) Uniform Traffic Citation and Complaint.

### Sec. 25-31 - Enforcement procedures.

# Sec. 25-32 – Failure to comply with corrective notices.

It shall be a violation for any owner or occupant of property in the city limits who receives a corrective notice from an enforcement officer to fail or refuse to complete the corrective action within the time designated.

# Sec. 25-33 - Penalties.

- (a) It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any provision of Chapter 25.
- (b) First violation of chapter. For a first-time violation of this chapter, a defendant may elect to plead guilty before a magistrate. The penalty shall be a two-hundred and fifty (\$250) dollar fine, plus court costs. A defendant in lieu of appearing before a magistrate may sign a guilty plea and waiver of trial provisions on a municipal offense ticket or uniform nontraffic citation and complaint ("UNTCC") and deliver the amount of the fine and costs to the clerk of the municipal court, or mail the correct amount pursuant to this section to the clerk of the municipal court, P.O. Box 2446, Mobile, Alabama 36652.
- (c) Subsequent violations of chapter. For subsequent violations of this chapter a court appearance is required.

- (d) Each day a violation of this chapter is committed or permitted to continue shall constitute a separate offense.
- (e) Any person who appears in municipal court and is found guilty of a violation of this chapter may, in the discretion of the court, be punished by a fine of up to three hundred and fifty dollars (\$350.00) or imprisonment of up to three (3) months, or a combination thereof; or, in the alternative, may be subject to any lawful order including without limitation, community service or remedial action, including but not limited to picking up litter.
- (f) Three convictions of Chapter 25 within a twelve-month period for offenses by a business establishment, or its agents, will result in immediate placement on the City Council agenda for consideration of the suspension or revocation of the business license. See the City of Mobile Code, Chapter 34.
- (g) A schedule of fines for violations of this chapter shall be published in the municipal court magistrate's fine schedule, which appears at section 1-32 of the City Code.

#### ARTICLE IV. SEPTAGE AND GREASE HAULER REGULATIONS

## Sec. 25-40 - Title

This body of regulations shall be known as the septage and grease hauler regulations. (Ord. No. 25-086, § 1, 11-26-02)

## Sec. 25-41 - Findings and purpose.

- (a) The United States District for the Southern District of Alabama, Southern Division, entered a consent decree in a civil action styled United States of America, the State of Alabama, and Mobile Bay Watch, Inc. versus the Board of Water and Sewer Commissioners of the City of Mobile, Alabama, Case No. CV-99-0595-CB-S and 2002-58-CB-S.
- (b) The consent decree requires the board of water and sewer commissioners (hereafter the "board") to develop, among other things, a grease control program.
- (c) In order to comply with the court's consent decree, the board has asked the city to cooperate by imposing reasonable regulations upon companies that are licensed by the city to operate a septage and grease hauling business.
- (d) The city believes that the board's request is reasonable and desires to accommodate the board; and the city further finds that such a policy is desirable and promotes the public health, safety and welfare as it will prevent unlicensed operation of such companies and will reduce illegal discharges of septage and grease.

#### Sec. 25-42 - License required.

No person shall engage in the business as a septage or grease hauler within the city or its police jurisdiction without first obtaining a business license in accordance with chapter 34 of the Mobile City Code.

# Sec. 25-43 – Operating requirements.

(a) It shall be a violation of this code for any grease hauler or septage hauler to dispose of any waste at any location other than a disposal site permitted to accept such waste by the Alabama Department of Environmental Management (ADEM), the Alabama State Board of Health, the state department of agriculture, or another governmental agency with authority to permit such activity.

- (b) Every vehicle used by any septage or grease hauler must prominently display on the exterior of the vehicle in at least four-inch lettering the following information: company name, business license number and business telephone number.
- (c) Every vehicle used by any septage or grease hauler must maintain a chain of custody or manifest for each pick up, disposal or other service provided for each customer. Such document must identify the source of waste hauled, the type of waste hauled, the date and time waste were accepted by the hauling company, the amount of waste accepted, the disposal location for waste, and any applicable permit numbers associated with the process. When waste is removed from a food service facility, a copy of the completed manifest must be returned to the originating facility.
- (d) Any violation of this code section may result in the issuance of a MOT or UNTCC to the operator and or vehicle's owner of the septage or grease hauler vehicle.

SUSPENSION OF RULES FOR IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT RESOLUTIONS BEING INTRODUCED FOR THE FIRST TIME. Councilmember Daves moved for the suspension of the rules to consider consent resolutions 09-216 through 60-229 with the exception of 40-218 being introduced for the first time. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Woods, and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The Presiding Officer declared unanimous consent granted for the items.

### **CONSENT RESOLUTIONS BEING INTRODUCED**

TRANSFER FUNDS FROM DISTRICT 7 DISCRETIONARY ACCOUNT TO MOBILE TENNIS CENTER FOR THE CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER'S SERVE IT UP EVENT. The following resolution was introduced by Councilmember Daves.

RESOLUTION: 09-216-2024

Sponsored by: Councilmember Gregory

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE, ALABAMA, that the sum of \$400.00 be transferred from the District 7 General Fund, Discretionary Account DSC-07, from General Fund Account 10041020-42080 to the Mobile Tennis Center Account 61106110-44020 it will be used to assist with the Child Advocacy Center Serve It Up event.

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Daves moved to adopt the resolution which was seconded by Councilmember Carroll and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the resolution adopted.

<u>DECLARE THE STRUCTURE AT 2813 BERKLEY AVENUE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND ORDER IT DEMOLISHED.</u> The following resolution was introduced by Councilmember Daves.

RESOLUTION: 40-217-2024

Sponsored by: Councilmember Penn

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Chapter 52, Article II of the Mobile City Code, "Abatement of Unsafe Buildings and Structural Nuisances" adopted December 5, 2017, the accessory structure at 2813 Berkley Avenue has been found by the Code Official of the City of Mobile to be dangerous and unsafe to the extent that it is a public nuisance;

WHEREAS, the Code Official has identified the following factors, in accordance with Section 4, Subsection 5 of Article II of Chapter 52, in support of the determination that the structure is dangerous and unsafe to the extent that it is a public nuisance: **Nuisance Abatement Inspection Checklist/Exhibit A - No. 4, 7, 8, 12, 14 and 15; and** 

WHEREAS, the Mobile City Council has held a public hearing to determine whether said structure constitutes a public nuisance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BASED UPON THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE that the structure at **2813 Berkley Avenue described as:** 

# LOT 178 TRINITY GDNS 2<sup>ND</sup> ADD BLK G MBK 3/331 #SEC 44 T5S R1W #MP 29 02 44 0 009

Parcel Number: 29 02 44 0 009 384

Last Assessed to: CAMPBELL THOMAS G & CASSIE B PRUITT

is found and determined by the Mobile City Council to be dangerous and unsafe to the extent that it is a public nuisance and a blighted property, and it is hereby ordered that said structure be **demolished** in accordance with the terms of said Chapter 52, Article II of the Mobile City Code, "Abatement of Unsafe Buildings and Structural Nuisances."

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the City Clerk of the City shall mail a certified copy of this resolution by registered or certified mail to the interested persons listed above, and a certified copy of this resolution shall be published in the manner and as prescribed for the publication of municipal ordinances, and a certified copy of this resolution shall also be filed in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Mobile County, Alabama.

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Daves moved to adopt the resolution which was seconded by Councilmember Carroll and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the resolution adopted.

**DECLARE THE STRUCTURE AT 1328 ADAMS STREET A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND ORDER IT DEMOLISHED.** The following resolution was held over until the regular meeting of March 19, 2024.

RESOLUTION: 40-218-2024

Sponsored by: Councilmember Carroll

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Chapter 52, Article II of the Mobile City Code, "Abatement of Unsafe Buildings and Structural Nuisances" adopted December 5, 2017, the accessory structure at 1328 Adams Street has been found by the Code Official of the City of Mobile to be dangerous and unsafe to the extent that it is a public nuisance;

WHEREAS, the Code Official has identified the following factors, in accordance with Section 4, Subsection 5 of Article II of Chapter 52, in support of the determination that the

structure is dangerous and unsafe to the extent that it is a public nuisance: **Nuisance Abatement Inspection Checklist/Exhibit A - No. 4, 7, 8, 12, 14 and 15; and** 

WHEREAS, the Mobile City Council has held a public hearing to determine whether said structure constitutes a public nuisance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BASED UPON THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE that the structure at **1328 Adams Street described as:** 

# <u>LOTS 9 & 10 BLK 32 CAMP GROUND TRT MBK 1/12 #SEC 40 T4S R1W #MP29 06 40 0 007</u>

Parcel Number: 29 06 40 O 007 041

Last Assessed to: BROWN CARLA P & NORMAN T BELL

is found and determined by the Mobile City Council to be dangerous and unsafe to the extent that it is a public nuisance and a blighted property, and it is hereby ordered that said structure be **demolished** in accordance with the terms of said Chapter 52, Article II of the Mobile City Code, "Abatement of Unsafe Buildings and Structural Nuisances."

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the City Clerk of the City shall mail a certified copy of this resolution by registered or certified mail to the interested persons listed above, and a certified copy of this resolution shall be published in the manner and as prescribed for the publication of municipal ordinances, and a certified copy of this resolution shall also be filed in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Mobile County, Alabama.

APPROVE AWARD OF SPECIAL BONUS TO THE PARKS & RECREATION EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH; MORRIS. The following resolution was introduced by Councilmember Daves.

RESOLUTION: 60-219-2024

Sponsored by: Mayor Stimpson

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE, ALABAMA, that the Mayor, upon nomination by City Supervisors, recommends to the City Council that it authorize awards, pursuant to Section 11-40-22 Code of Alabama 1975, of \$500 to the following employee:

March 2024 – Carliss Morris (Employee # 19105) Public Works (Parks & Recreation)

This employee is to be commended for her exemplary work performance or innovations that significantly reduce costs or results in an outstanding improvement in service to the public.

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Daves moved to adopt the resolution which was seconded by Councilmember Carroll and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the resolution adopted.

<u>PUBLIC PURPOSE AND APPROVE PAYMENT.</u> The following resolution was introduced by Councilmember Daves.

RESOLUTION: 60-220-2024

Sponsored by: Councilmember Penn

WHEREAS, Councilmember Penn wishes to appropriate **\$500.00** to Crittenton Youth Services, from his discretionary funds; and

WHEREAS, Crittenton Youth Services, is an Alabama non-profit corporation which provides a service to the community; and

WHEREAS, the Attorney General of the State of Alabama has opined that the granting of public funds to private groups or corporations is proper if the City Council determines that the same serves a public purpose; and

WHEREAS, the Mobile City Council determines that this appropriation to Crittenton Youth Services, will be used to assist with the organization's programs which provides social and emotional learning skills to youth ages 10-13 or grades 5<sup>th</sup> – 8<sup>th</sup> grades in public, private, and parochial schools, which will serve a public purpose benefitting the City of Mobile and its citizens.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mobile City Council hereby finds and determines that an appropriation of **\$500.00** to Crittenton Youth Services, for the purposes described hereinabove serves a public purpose and the Council further approves and directs the payment of same, and further authorizes execution of a standard form City of Mobile council discretionary fund performance contract with said entity, group or individual for the amount set forth herein.

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Daves moved to adopt the resolution which was seconded by Councilmember Carroll and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the resolution adopted.

<u>DETERMINE AN APPROPRIATION TO AFRICATOWN PLATEAU PACERS SERVES A PUBLIC PURPOSE AND APPROVE PAYEMENT.</u> The following resolution was introduced by Councilmember Daves.

RESOLUTION: 60-221-2024

Sponsored by: Councilmember Carroll

WHEREAS, Councilmember Carroll wishes to appropriate **\$1,000.00** to Africatown Plateau Pacers from his discretionary funds; and

WHEREAS, Africatown Plateau Pacers is an Alabama non-profit corporation which provides a service to the community; and

WHEREAS, the Attorney General of the State of Alabama has opined that the granting of public funds to private groups or corporations is proper if the City Council determines that the same serves a public purpose; and

WHEREAS, the Mobile City Council determines that this appropriation to Africatown Plateau Pacers will be used to assist with the 3<sup>rd</sup> Annual Africatown Plateau Pacers Community Fun Day Walk/Run on Sunday, July 31, 2024, which will serve a public purpose benefitting the City of Mobile and its citizens.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mobile City Council hereby finds and determines that an appropriation of **\$1,000.00** to Africatown Plateau Pacers, for the purposes described hereinabove serves a public purpose and the Council further approves and directs the payment of same, and further authorizes execution of a standard form City of Mobile council discretionary fund performance contract with said entity, group or individual for the amount set forth herein.

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Daves moved to adopt the resolution which was seconded by Councilmember Carroll and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the resolution adopted.

<u>CLUB SERVES A PUBLIC PURPSE AND APPROVE PAYMENT.</u> The following resolution was introduced by Councilmember Daves.

RESOLUTION: 60-222-2024

Sponsored by: Councilmember Carroll

WHEREAS, Councilmember Carroll wishes to appropriate **\$1,000.00** to Marching Cougars Band Booster Club from his discretionary funds; and

WHEREAS, Marching Cougars Band Booster Club is an Alabama non-profit corporation which provides a service to the community; and

WHEREAS, the Attorney General of the State of Alabama has opined that the granting of public funds to private groups or corporations is proper if the City Council determines that the same serves a public purpose; and

WHEREAS, the Mobile City Council determines that this appropriation to Marching Cougars Band Booster Club will be used to assist with marketing and operational expenses, which will serve a public purpose benefiting the City of Mobile and its citizens.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mobile City Council hereby finds and determines that an appropriation of **\$1,000.00** to Marching Cougars Band Booster Club, for the purposes described hereinabove serves a public purpose and the Council further approves and directs the payment of same, and further authorizes execution of a standard form City of Mobile council discretionary fund performance contract with said entity, group or individual for the amount set forth herein.

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Daves moved to adopt the resolution which was seconded by Councilmember Carroll and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the resolution adopted.

<u>PSI, INC. SERVES A PUBLIC PURPOSE AND APPROVE PAYMENT.</u> The following resolution was introduced by Councilmember Daves.

RESOLUTION: 60-223-2024

Sponsored by: Councilmember Gregory

WHEREAS, Councilmember Gregory wishes to appropriate **\$1,000.00** to Mobile Alumni Chapter Kappa Alpha Psi, Inc., from her discretionary funds; and

WHEREAS, Mobile Alumni Chapter Kappa Alpha Psi, Inc., is an Alabama non-profit corporation which provides a service to the community; and

WHEREAS, the Attorney General of the State of Alabama has opined that the granting of public funds to private groups or corporations is proper if the City Council determines that the same serves a public purpose; and

WHEREAS, the Mobile City Council determines that this appropriation to Mobile Alumni Chapter Kappa Alpha Psi, Inc., will be used to assist with the 18<sup>th</sup> Annual Golf Tournament, which will serve a public purpose benefitting the City of Mobile and its citizens.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mobile City Council hereby finds and determines that an appropriation of \$1,000.00 to Mobile Alumni Chapter Kappa Alpha Psi, Inc., for the purposes described hereinabove serves a public purpose and the Council further approves and directs the payment of same, and further authorizes execution of a standard form City of Mobile council discretionary fund performance contract with said entity, group or individual for the amount set forth herein.

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Daves moved to adopt the resolution which was seconded by Councilmember Carroll and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the resolution adopted.

<u>DETERMINE AN APPROPRIATION TO MOTHERS INVOLVED AGAINST GUN VIOLENCE SERVES A PUBLIC PURPSE AND APPROVE PAYMENT.</u> The following resolution was introduced by Councilmember Daves.

RESOLUTION: 60-229-2024

Sponsored by: Mayor Stimpson

WHEREAS, Mayor Stimpson wishes to appropriate \$2,500.00 to Mothers Involved Against Gun Violence, from his discretionary funds; and

WHEREAS, Mothers Involved Against Gun Violence is an Alabama non-profit corporation which provides a service to the community; and

WHEREAS, the Attorney General of the State of Alabama has opined that the granting of public funds to private groups or corporations is proper if the City Council determines that the same serves a public purpose; and

WHEREAS, the Mobile City Council determines that this appropriation to Mothers Involved Against Gun Violence, will be used to assist with reduction in gun violence, which will serve a public purpose benefitting the City of Mobile and its citizens.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mobile City Council hereby finds and determines that an appropriation of \$2,500.00 to Mothers Involved Against Gun Violence, for the purposes described hereinabove serves a public purpose and the Council further approves and directs the payment of same, and further authorizes execution of a standard form City of Mobile council discretionary fund performance contract with said entity, group or individual for the amount set forth herein.

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Daves moved to adopt the resolution which was seconded by Councilmember Carroll and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the resolution adopted.

# **RESOLUTIONS BEING INTRODUCED**

AUTHORIZE AGREEMENT WITH MOBILE COUNTY ALABAMA FOR UPGRADING COURTROOM TECHNOLOGY. The following resolution was held over until the regular meeting of March 19, 2024.

RESOLUTION: 01-224-2024

Sponsored by: Mayor Stimpson

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE, ALABAMA, that the Mayor and the City Clerk be, and hereby are, authorized and directed to execute and attest, respectively, for and on behalf of the City of Mobile, a contract by and between the City of Mobile and the County of Mobile, Alabama for work performed in upgrading courtroom technology as outlined in the Subrecipient Agreement attached hereto and made a part hereof as though set forth in full. A copy is on file in the office of the City Clerk.

AUTHORIZE AGREEMENT WITH THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY FOR THE ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM. The following resolution was held over until the regular meeting of March 19, 2024.

RESOLUTION: 01-225-2024

Sponsored by: Mayor Stimpson

WHEREAS, by Resolution 31-656 2023 dated June 13, 2023, City Council authorized the Mayor to apply for funding from the US Department of Energy, Office of State and Community Energy Programs, a DOE Grant Funding Allocation to the City of Mobile in the amount of \$229,820 for the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) Program, no match required for funding; and

WHEREAS, the City of Mobile negotiated the attached Assistance Agreement which does not have a match requirement for funding but does incorporate a cost share provision for purchasing a second chiller at City expense with the first chiller funded by the grant; now therefore.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE, ALABAMA, that the Mayor and the City Clerk be, and they hereby are authorized to execute and attest, respectively, for and on behalf of the City of Mobile, the Assistance Agreement between the City of Mobile and US Department of Energy, Office of State and Community Energy Programs attached hereto and made apart hereof, as though set forth in full, and to take such further action necessary to effectuate the Agreement. A copy of said Agreement is on file in the office of the City Clerk.

ALLOCATE FUNDS IN THE STORM WATER FUND TO CAPITAL PROJECT MUNICIPAL STORM WATER FEES PROJECT FOR STROM WATER MANAGEMENT PROJECTS; \$2,820,000.00. The following resolution was held over until the regular meeting of March 19, 2024.

RESOLUTION: 09-226-2024

Sponsored by: Mayor Stimpson

WHEREAS, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE adopted Ordinance Number 01-024 on August 21, 2018 levying a storm water fee on Residential and Commercial Property to support the Storm Water Management Program (MS4); and

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 01-024 is now codified at Article III, Chapter 17 of the Mobile City Code; and

WHEREAS, Section 17-47 of the Mobile City Code states:

"The storm water fees levied and collected pursuant to this division shall be deposited into a fund known as storm water fund to be designated for expenses incurred complying with the City's NPDES permit for operations of its MS4, including but not limited to eliminating floatables from and improving water quality in the rivers, streams and waterways of the City and other storm water management activities required by the City's storm water management program. All amounts remaining in the fund at the end of the fiscal year shall not lapse but shall retain their dedication to storm water purposes."

WHEREAS, the Revenue Commissioner of Mobile County assessed, collected, enforced and remitted the fees to the City of Mobile; and

WHEREAS, in order for such funds to be utilized for the purposes set forth in Section 17-47, the Mobile City Council desires to allocate the funds to capital projects;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE, ALABAMA, that the sum of \$2,820,000, currently deposited in the Storm Water fund, be allocated to Capital Project #C0446 Municipal Storm Water Fees Project for the following Storm Water Management projects:

Household Hazardous Waste Days 2025 (2 events - spring and fall)	\$75,000
Miscellaneous Drainage/Slope Repair, Sediment Removal and Slope Stabilization	\$1,250,000
Storm Water Drainage Design Manual	\$250,000
Post-Construction Compliance	\$15,000
CTX160 Track Mini-Skid Steer	\$82,000
Broom Bear Sweeper	\$380,000
Pelican Street Sweeper	\$277,000
Storm Water Modeling	\$241,000
Supplement Ditch Cleaning Contract	\$250,000

AUTHORIZE CONTRACT WITH GALLS, LLC FOR UNIFORMS FOR MFRD; \$225,000.00 PER YEAR. The following resolution was held over until the regular meeting of March 19, 2024.

RESOLUTION: 21-227-2024

Sponsored by: Mayor Stimpson

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MOBILE, ALABMA, that the Mayor and City Clerk be3, and they hereby are, authorized to execute and attest, respectively, for and on behalf of the City of Mobile, a contract, by and between the City of Mobile and Galls, LLC, in the amount not to exceed \$225,000.00 per yar, for one year, renewable for two additional one year periods at the Mayor's discretion without further Council action, for uniforms for the Mobile Fire Rescue Department, as outlined in the contract attached hereto and made a part hereof as though set forth in full. A copy of said contract is on file in the Office of the City Clerk.

# **CALL FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS**

CALL FOR PUBLIC HEARING TO REZONE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4600 CYPRESS BUSINESS PARK DRIVE FROM B-3 AND B-5 TO B-3 (SCHEDULED FOR

APRIL 9, 2024) (DISTRICT 4). The following resolution was introduced by Councilmember Reynolds.

RESOLUTION: 41-228-2024

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE, ALABAMA, that the City Clerk be, and she hereby is, instructed to publish in a newspaper of general circulation within the municipality the attached notice stating the time and place a proposed amendment to the Zoning Ordinance is to be considered by the City Council and further stating that at such time and place all persons who desire shall have an opportunity of being heard in opposition to or in favor of the proposed amendment.

Notice of Public Hearing for the Proposed Rezoning of Property Located at 4600 Cypress Business Park Drive

Pursuant to Resolution of the Mobile, Alabama City Council adopted March 12, 2024, a public hearing will be held on the 9th day of April, 2024, at 10:30 a.m., to consider adoption of an ordinance to rezone property located at 4600 Cypress Business Park Drive from B-3, Community Business Suburban District, and B-5, Office Distribution District, to B-3, Community Business Suburban District.

The public hearing will be held in the Auditorium of Government Plaza, 205 Government Street, Mobile, Alabama. All persons who desire shall have an opportunity to be heard in favor of or in opposition to the proposed amendment at such time and place. Further, the City Council may consider zoning classifications other than the ones sought by the applicant and may take other actions allowed by law.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ORDINANCE ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE ON THE 12TH DAY OF JULY, 2022, SAID ORDINANCE BEING COMMONLY KNOWN AS THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBILE AS FOLLOWS:

<u>Section One</u>: That the Ordinance commonly known as the Unified Development Code and adopted on July 12, 2022, together with the Zoning Map of the City of Mobile, be, and the same hereby is amended in respect to that certain property in the City of Mobile, State of Alabama, described as follows to-wit:

LOT 1, CREEKLINE, SIXTH ADDITION, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 75, PAGE 49 OF THE RECORDS IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE, MOBILE COUNTY, ALABAMA TOGETHER WITH THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1, CREEKLINE, FIFTH ADDITION, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 74, PAGE 88 OF THE RECORDS IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE, MOBILE COUNTY, ALABAMA;

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A CAPPED REBAR (ILLEGIBLE) AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1, CREEKLINE, SIXTH ADDITION, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 75, PAGE 49 OF THE RECORDS IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE, MOBILE COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH 76°-48'-06" WEST ALONG THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF HIGGINS ROAD (50' R/W) AND ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1 A DISTANCE OF 357.47 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (WATTIER); THENCE RUN ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1, AND ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT (HAVING A DELTA OF I 18°-20'-08", A RADIUS OF 30.00 FEET, A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 17°-38'-02" WEST, AND A CHORD LENGTH OF 51.52 FEET) AN ARG DISTANCE OF 61.96 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (R&C) ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CYPRESS BUSINESS PARK DRIVE (60' R/W) AND THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE RUN NORTHWARD ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1, AND ALONG THE ARC.OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT (HAVING A DELTA OF 41 °-31'-29", A RADIUS OF 328.88 FEET, A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 20°-46'-17" EAST,

AND A CHORD LENGTH OF 233.17 FEET) AN ARC DISTANCE OF 238.35 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (R&C): THENCE RUN NORTH 00°-00' -33" EAST ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 A DISTANCE OF 60.62 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (WATTIER) AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1, CREEKLINE, FIFTH ADDITION, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 74, PAGE 88 OF THE RECORDS IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE, MOBILE COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH 00°-00' -33" EAST ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1, CREEKLINE, FIFTH ADDITION A DISTANCE OF 40,00 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (WATTIER); THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°-54'-32" EAST ALONG A LINE BEING 40 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1, CREEKLINE, FIFTH ADDITION A DISTANCE OF 300.08 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (WA TTIER) ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 1, CREEKLINE; FIFTH ADDITION; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°-00'-33" WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 1, CREEKLINE, FIFTH ADDITION A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (R&C) AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1, CREEKLINE, FIFTH ADDITION, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1, CREEKLINE, SIXTH ADDITION; THENCE RUN SOUTH 09°-50' -41" WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 1, CREEKLINE. SIXTH ADDITION A DISTANCE OF 102.22 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (R&C); THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°-18'-41" WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 1, CREEKLINE, SIXTH ADDITION A DISTANCE OF 308.17 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. THE DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 2.97 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

The classification of said property is hereby changed from B-3, Community Business Suburban District and B-5, Office Distribution District, to B-3, Community Business Suburban District and it shall hereafter be lawful to construct on such property any structures permitted by the Ordinance of July 12, 2022, commonly known as the Unified Development Code and to use said premises for any use permitted by the terms of said Ordinance in a B-3, Community Business Suburban District, provided, however, that the plans for any structure or building sought to be erected on said property shall be in compliance with the building laws of the City of Mobile, and that any structure shall be approved by the Building Inspector of the City of Mobile, and that any such structure be erected only in compliance with such laws, including the requirements of said Unified Development Code of July 12, 2022, and further provided, however, that no lot or parcel of land herein above described shall be used for any use allowed in a B-3, Community Business Suburban District until all of the conditions set forth below have been complied with: 1. Completion of the Subdivision process for proposed 4600 Business Park Subdivision; 2. Compliance with all Engineering, Traffic Engineering, Urban Forestry, and Fire Department comments noted in the staff report; and, 3. Full compliance with an municipal codes and ordinances.

<u>Section Two</u>: This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after its adoption and publication.

The resolution was read by the City Clerk, whereupon Councilmember Reynolds moved to call for the public hearing, which was seconded by Councilmember Daves and the vote was as follows:

Ayes: Penn, Carroll, Reynolds, Daves, Woods, and Gregory

Nays: None

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer set the date for the public hearing as April 9, 2024.

## **ANNOUNCEMENTS**

Councilmember Penn stated that a District 1 pastor's meeting will be held on April 1, 2024, at the Toulminville Library at 6:00 p.m. and invited all pastors in District 1 to attend.

Councilmember Penn announced a District 1 business owners meeting will be held on April 4, 2024, at Toulminville Library at 6:00 p.m.

Councilmember Penn said that a Creighton meeting will be held on April 8, 2024, at Friendship Church at 6:00 p.m.

Councilmember Daves announced that a Finance Committee meeting will be held today at approximately 1:00 p.m.

Councilmember Carroll congratulated Texas Street boys' basketball team for winning the State Championship this past weekend.

Councilmember Carroll announced that a District 2 community meeting will be held on March 26, 2024, at Harmon Park at 6:00 p.m.

Councilmember Woods announced a District 6 community meeting will be held on March 26, 2024, at Woodridge Baptist Church.

Councilmember Woods stated that he participated in "Reading Across America Month" by reading to students at Burkes Elementary School.

Councilmember Woods thanked Coach Chase for allowing him to MC the opening day ceremonies at Westside ballpark.

Councilmember Gregory said that she participated in "Reading Across America Month" by reading to students at Orchard Elementary last week.

Councilmember Gregory stated that the Mobile Botanical Gardens' plant sale will be held on March 14 -16, 2024.

Councilmember Gregory informed the public that an alligator was seen at Langan Park and that a professional trapper has been hired to catch and relocate it.

Britton Bonner, Council Attorney made the following statement:

My name is Britton Bonner, and I am an attorney licensed to practice in the State of Alabama. I assert that the planned discussion within the proposed Executive Session meets the requirements of Section 36-25A-7 of the Alabama Open Meetings Act. In particular, the Executive Session is necessary to discuss preliminary negotiations involving an economic development project. I hereby assert that such discussions, if entered into the minutes or disclosed outside of an Executive Session, would have a detrimental effect upon the competitive position of the City.

According to the Open Meetings Act, and in particular Alabama Code Section 36-25A-7(b), the majority of the Council must be present at a lawfully convened meeting and, prior to adjourning, must adopt by a recorded vote a motion calling for the Executive Session and setting out the purpose of the Executive Session. The vote of each member must be recorded in the minutes. Prior to calling the Executive Session to order, the presiding officer must state whether the Council will reconvene after the Executive Session, and, if so, state the approximate time the body expects to reconvene.

Councilmember Daves moved for the Council to move into executive session and adjourn the regular meeting, which was seconded by Councilmember Reynolds and the vote was as follows:

Penn: Aye Carroll: Aye Reynolds: Aye Daves: Aye Gregory: Aye

The vote was then announced by the City Clerk, whereupon the Presiding Officer declared the regular meeting adjourned at approximately 11:08 a.m.

Adopted:	
	COUNCIL VICE-PRESIDENT
	CITY CLERK